
Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, November 20th, 2023 

In-Person, Council Chambers 

ATTEND IN PERSON – The Council Chambers is open to the public with normal or standard 

occupancy levels.  

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 

   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 

   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/FreyNV_uY3A. Recordings can be viewed on   

   CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 

   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please get in touch with the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov 

   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, October 16, 2023, to receive the Zoom         

   Link to the meeting. 

I. COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING – CALL TO ORDER

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session.  No council

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.

B) Trivia Question – Council Member Bernier

III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:

A) 2024 Budget: Summarize Funds  – 55 minutes

IV. ADJOURNMENT

The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 1 of 203

https://youtube.com/live/FreyNV_uY3A
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


11/16/23, 1:37 PM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQACYevTTgyqlGqWFY3P4%2… 1/1

2024 budget

Lori McGowan <lmcgowan@bellefontepa.gov>
Thu 11/16/2023 11:42 AM
To: Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefontepa.gov>; Buddy Johnson <Bjohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Deborah Cleeton <dcleeton@bellefontepa.gov>; Doug Johnson
<djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Joanne Tosti-Vasey <jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Johanna Sedgwick <Jsedgwick@bellefontepa.gov>; Kent Bernier
<Kbernier@bellefontepa.gov>; Randy Brachbill <rbrachbill@bellefontepa.gov>; Rita Purnell <Rpurnell@bellefontepa.gov>; Shawna McKean <Smckean@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

The ques�on was asked at the last mee�ng's work session how much was in the General Fund reserves.  There is approximately $500,000 in
reserves.  The shor�all in the general fund is $97,000.  As you can see, there is more than enough in reserves to cover the shor�all.

I also wanted to let you know what decisions are going to need to be made on the 2024 budget.

Streetlight Fund - need a ½ mil tax increase to cover purchasing lights and poles to replace the ones used on the streetscape project and to have
a few spares 

Fire Department Fund - need a .05 tax increase to keep up with our obliga�on

EMS Fund - need to decide if you want to increase the milage (currently .25 mils)

General Fund - need to decide how to cover the shor�all

Bulk Water Fund - need to decide if the increase requested from Spring Creek Watershed Commission is going to be granted.

I will be going over these Monday night.  However, I wanted to give you food for thought beforehand.

Have a great day!

Lori

Lori McGowan 
Finance Director
Bellefonte Borough
phone: 814-355-1501 x212
fax: 814-353-2315

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 2 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 3 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 4 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 5 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 6 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 7 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 8 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 9 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 10 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 11 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 12 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 13 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 14 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 15 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 16 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 17 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 18 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 19 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 20 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 21 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 22 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 23 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 24 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 25 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 26 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 27 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 28 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 29 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 30 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 31 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 32 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 33 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 34 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 35 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 36 of 203



   
 

1 
 

 
 

 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Business Meeting  

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Monday, November 20th, 2023 

In-Person, Council Chambers  
 

ATTEND IN PERSON – The Council Chambers is open to the public with normal or standard 

occupancy levels.  

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 

   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 

   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/FreyNV_uY3A. Recordings can be viewed on   

   CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 

   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please get in touch with the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov  

   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, November 20th, 2023, to receive the Zoom            

   Link to the meeting. 
 

I. 7:30 PM COUNCIL MEETING – CALL TO ORDER 

Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council meeting. We will do our best to start council meetings on 

time and end them on time. Due to the room acoustics, please speak up when talking so that people can hear what 

you are saying. All comments and reports should be kept to three minutes maximum. Thank you. 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE and MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

III.   ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, Vice-President, North Ward  Ms. McKean, West Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Dann, Pro Tempore, South Ward   Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Mr. Johnson, President, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it 

with the following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council 

may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the 

action item is being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The officers of council have decided to try combining agenda and non-agenda public comment. This Public 

Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or any 

comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come to the 

podium at the appropriate time, state your name and address and which item you are speaking about. Please 

try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 37 of 203

https://youtube.com/live/FreyNV_uY3A
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


 

2 
 

VII.     COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipality Report for October & November 2023. FYI. No council 

action is requested. 

Notice – Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Administrator at SEDA-COG leaving. FYI. No council action 

is requested. 

Junior Council Person Application—Christian Larson. Bellefonte Borough joined this program associated with the 

Pennsylvania State Association of Boroughs years ago.  The Junior Council Person position has been vacant.  Information 

on the Junior Council Person program is included.  Motion/ 2nd to approve Christian Larson as Jr. Borough Council 

Member. 

Invitation - In celebration of student-community work, the Sustainable Communities Collaborative is holding its semi-

annual Campus and Community Sustainability EXPO on Dec. 7, 2023, from 5:00 – 7:00 pm in the State 

College Municipal Building, 243 S. Allen Street in State College. FYI. No council action is requested. 

Notice - Response to Earth Disturbance Complaint for 1308 Summit Drive from Centre County Conservation District. 

FYI, no action requested. 

Invitation - Solar United Neighbors Solar and EV Charger Co-op launching in March 2024. FYI, no action requested. 

 

VIII.      CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action.  

General Council Meeting Minutes November 6, 2023 

Finance Budget V. Actual October 2023 

Finance Budget V. Actual Summary October 2023 

Finance Treasurer’s Report October 2023 

Finance Voucher Summary October 2023 

Call for a Motion/ 2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 

IX.     REPORTS 
Elected Official and Staff Reports 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ Proclamation: Small Business Saturday 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Police 

➢ October 2023 Report 

➢ Recognition of Dan Schlieden and CPI's Collision Course for their generous 

donation to the Police Department 

➢ Parking Enforcement and Animal Control October 2023 Report 

Chief Weaver Submitted 

Parking 

➢ Parking Report for October 2023 

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)  

➢ The next HARB meeting is Tuesday, November 28 at 8:30 a.m. in Council 

Chambers. (This meeting may be canceled if there are no projects to review.)  

 

➢ The Zoning Hearing Board will meet on Wednesday, November 29 at 5:00 pm 

in Council Chambers to hear a dimensional variance request.  

 

➢ The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, December 11 at 5:00 pm in 

Council Chambers to review technical comments on the Bellefonte 

Elementary Building Land Development and Stormwater Management Plan.  

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 38 of 203



3 

Nuisance Codes   Mr. Barr Verbal 

  Borough Manager  Mr. Stewart Submitted 

Liaison Reports 

Reports are to be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include 

draft meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding 

the report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be 

stated on the council meeting agenda 

ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee Mr. Holderman 

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Holderman 

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services Mr. Rhoat Submitted 

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Brooks 

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Stewart Submitted 

Centre County Boroughs Association Ms. Dann 

Centre County Government Mr. Stewart 

CNET Board of Directors Mr. Holderman 

Downtown Bellefonte Inc. (DBI) Ms. Thompson 

Governor’s Park Mr. Holderman 

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Holderman 

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Holderman 

Shade Tree Commission Mr. Holderman 

Union Cemetery Association Mr. Holderman 

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson 

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority Mr. D. Johnson 

Centre County Airport Authority Mr. D. Johnson Submitted 

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission Mr. D. Johnson 

Spring Creek Watershed Commission Mr. Brachbill 

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill 

Centre County Library Board Ms. Cleeton 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill 

Talleyrand Park Committee Ms. Dann  

Workplace Safety Committee Ms. Doherty Submitted 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) Mr. D. Johnson 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS BY CENTRE COUNTY BOROUGHS 

ASSOCIATION 

LIAISON REPORT 

PA State Association of Boroughs (PSAB) Board of Directors Mr. Brachbill 

PSAB Resolutions Committee Ms. Dann 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS

Question regarding the Budget v. Actual September 2023 Report. See the answer provided.  Motion/2nd to remove the 

Budget v. Actual September 2023 from the table. Motion/2nd to approve the Budget v. Actual September 2023.  

Police Pension Fund Minimum Municipal Obligation for 2024.  Staff received revised budget numbers from the Actuary.  

Motion/2nd to re-approve new MMO budget numbers for 2024 and re-approve Resolution No. 11202023-01.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 39 of 203



 

4 
 

Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project Pre-Construction Meeting Notes from November 2, 2023. FYI, no 

action requested. 

Governors Park Baseball Field Committee recommends using approximately $30,000 out of the Bulk Water Project 

Fund, along with the original ballfield grant funds, to do both the Batting Cage and restroom renovation projects. 

Motion/2nd to approve the Governors Park Baseball Field Committee's recommendation to use approximately 

$30,000 from the Bulk Water Fund, along the original ballfield grant funds, for the Batting Cage and restroom 

renovation projects.  

Borough Offices will be closed on Thursday, November 23rd for Thanksgiving. FYI, no council action is requested. 

Holiday Curtesy Parking Program.  At the Bellefonte Borough Council meeting held on January 17, 2023, Council 

approved courtesy parking for the 2023 Holiday Season.  The first time the parking enforcement officer observes a car 

with no time on the meter, the officer will give issue a complimentary pass of two hours. On the officer’s second pass-

through on that same day, and with no time on the meter and the two hours have passed, a ticket will be issued. Courtesy 

parking begins on November 23, 2023 (Thanksgiving Day) and lasts through January 1, 2024 (New Year's Day). We 

encourage you to use this opportunity to do some holiday shopping in beautiful downtown Bellefonte…and have a 

HAPPY HOLIDAY SEASON! FYI, no action requested. 
 

XI.           NEW BUSINESS 
Centre Region Code Agreement Amendment No. 1- an extension of the current agreement terms. Motion/2nd to approve 

the Centre Region Code Amendment No. 1. 

Duck Sampling in Talleyrand Park. Motion/2nd to approve Duck Sampling in Talleyrand Park. 

Joanne Tosti-Vasey’s request for reimbursement for attending the Pennsylvania Municipal League Conference in 

Gettysburg. Motion/2nd to approve reimbursement of $855.94 to Joanne Tosti-Vasey for attendance at the PA 

Municipal League Conference. 
 

XII.  COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

 

I. ADJOURNMENT 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION - Personnel, Legal  

 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2023 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 40 of 203



Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority

October 2023 | Municipal Newsletter

Mimi Cooper, Assistant Recycling Coordinator

AUTHORITY SERVICES

● CCRRA offers a Clean Energy Fueling Station for renewable natural gas, a cleaner low carbon fuel for
your fleet. Current price recently dropped to $3.19/GGE.

● Curbside Recycling is available in Marion Township, Walker Township, Howard Township, and Howard
Borough for $9 per month. Interested residents should contact CCRRA at (814) 238-7005.

● 2023 municipal waste tonnages remain higher than 2022 amounts. In September, the transfer station
crew processed over 9,604 tons of refuse.

● In September, CCRRA saw 909 tons of inbound recycling material. Our crews shipped 1,002 tons of
material to be used as feed stocks in the manufacturing process.

● Our enforcement team is working hard to battle litter and illegal dumping throughout our county,
collecting over 14,683 pounds of trash and 174 tires through the end of September.

● As of the end of September, we collected over 1,100 tons of recycling at the drop-off boxes and have
emptied the 80 containers - 2,290 times!

● CCRRA attended Sustainable Centre County to speak with residents about recycling. We are available
to attend your meetings, at your request.

● CCRRA also gives tours of our facility. To request a tour for your group, just give us a call.
● Check out our new Recycling App - RecycleCoach! It can be downloaded for free from the App Store. It

is a great tool for your smartphone to help you decide if an item is recyclable or not.
● CCRRA offers waste audits and educational materials for businesses and institutions to assist in your

recycling efforts. Contact our Commercial Recycling Coordinator Ed Hicks for details. Email
ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org or phone 814-238-7005.

SPECIAL EVENT RECYCLING

● Following each PSU home football game, CCRRA receives several tons of recyclable material from
tailgate areas and inside the stadium.

PSU Home Game Recyclables

vs. Iowa 9/23 13,625 lbs.

● The Authority’s annual Customer Appreciation Day was held Wednesday, October 11, welcoming several
local haulers and business affiliates.

● In partnership with Mahantango, CCRRA held its first tire collection event on Saturday, September 16 -
31.99 tons of tires were collected and recycled. That's a total of 2,169 tires!

● A free shredding event hosted by Representative Paul Takac in partnership with CCRRA resulted in the
collection of 7,220 pounds of recyclable material.

● CCRRA staff worked hard to add recycling containers at local fairs and festivals:

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - October

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 41 of 203

mailto:ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org


Woodward Music Festival | 09/15/23 through 09/17/23
Dutch Fall Festival | 10/6/23 through 10/8/23

UPCOMING EVENTS

● Keep Centre County Beautiful’s greening and beautification project to revitalize and beautify Tallyrand
Park with Bellefonte Borough is making progress.

GRANT FUNDING UPDATES

● Applications are due for the Alternative Fuel Incentive Grant Program on December 15, 2023. Please
contact our office if you need assistance with the application. Grant details can be found at Alternative
Fuels Incentive Grant

● We anticipate that DEP may announce an open round for 902 Recycling Program Development and
Implementation Grants in the winter. Please see the link here for application guidelines to see if your
municipality is eligible to apply. 902 Recycling Grant Application Guidelines . CCRRA’s Recycling
Coordinator is available to answer eligibility questions and to assist with the application process once
the round is open. We will notify eligible municipalities when this round is announced.

● The Department of Community and Economic Development has announced a funding opportunity for
projects that enhance a community’s quality of life. We have received clarification that eligible
applicants may apply on behalf of non-profit organizations. Details can be found at Local Share
Account (LSA) – Statewide - PA Department of Community & Economic Development

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - October

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 42 of 203

https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Business/Land/Waste/Recycling/Municipal-Resources/FinancialAssistance/Pages/902-Recycling-Grant-Application-Guidelines.aspx
https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/
https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/


Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority

November 2023 | Municipal Newsletter

Dave Watson, Enforcement O�cer

AUTHORITY SERVICES

● CCRRA offers a Clean Energy Fueling Station for renewable natural gas, a cleaner low carbon fuel for

your fleet. Current price recently dropped to $3.19/GGE.

● Curbside Recycling is available in Marion Township, Walker Township, Howard Township, and Howard

Borough for $9 per month. Interested residents should contact CCRRA at (814) 238-7005.

● 2023 municipal waste tonnages remain higher than 2022 amounts. In October, the transfer station

crew processed over 9,603 tons of refuse.

● In October, CCRRA saw 932 tons of inbound recycling material. Our crews shipped 1,002 tons of

material to be used as feed stocks in the manufacturing process.

● Our enforcement team is working hard to battle litter and illegal dumping throughout our county,

collecting over 15,056 pounds of trash and 2,343 tires through the end of October.

● As of the end of September, we collected over 1,100 tons of recycling at the drop-off boxes and have

emptied the 80 containers - 2,290 times!

● CCRRA attended the Fullington Bus Touch A Bus Event to speak with residents about recycling. We are

available to attend your meetings and events, at your request.

● CCRRA also gives tours of our facility. To request a tour for your group, just give us a call.

● Check out our new Recycling App - RecycleCoach! It can be downloaded for free from the App Store. It

is a great tool for your smartphone to help you decide if an item is recyclable or not.

● CCRRA offers waste audits and educational materials for businesses and institutions to assist in your

recycling efforts. Contact our Commercial Recycling Coordinator Ed Hicks for details. Email

ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org or phone 814-238-7005.

UPCOMING EVENTS

● The Centre County Green Business Partnership application is now available and we will be accepting
applications until January 31, 2024. The online application can be accessed here.

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - November

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 43 of 203

mailto:ehicks@centrecountyrecycles.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1ZMHD7pVlg9DddGpK_PYQBxCLR_guNM0hZLQwNINn3xI/edit


SPECIAL EVENT RECYCLING

● Following each PSU home football game, CCRRA receives several tons of recyclable material from

tailgate areas and inside the stadium.

PSU Home Game Recyclables

vs. Iowa 9/23 13,625 lbs.

vs. UMass 10/14 4,795 lbs.

vs. Indiana 10/28 9,505 lbs.

GRANT FUNDING UPDATES

● Applications are due for the Alternative Fuel Incentive Grant Program on December 15, 2023. Please

contact our office if you need assistance with the application. Grant details can be found at Alternative

Fuels Incentive Grant

● We anticipate that DEP may announce an open round for 902 Recycling Program Development and

Implementation Grants in the winter. Please see the link here for application guidelines to see if your

municipality is eligible to apply. 902 Recycling Grant Application Guidelines . CCRRA’s Recycling

Coordinator is available to answer eligibility questions and to assist with the application process once

the round is open. We will notify eligible municipalities when this round is announced.

● The Department of Community and Economic Development has announced a funding opportunity for

projects that enhance a community’s quality of life. We have received clarification that eligible

applicants may apply on behalf of non-profit organizations. Details can be found at Local Share

Account (LSA) – Statewide - PA Department of Community & Economic Development

Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Monthly Municipality Report - November

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 44 of 203

https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Citizens/GrantsLoansRebates/Alternative-Fuels-Incentive-Grant/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.dep.pa.gov/Business/Land/Waste/Recycling/Municipal-Resources/FinancialAssistance/Pages/902-Recycling-Grant-Application-Guidelines.aspx
https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/
https://dced.pa.gov/programs/local-share-account-lsa-statewide/


11/15/23, 1:25 PM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAFbdrr5%2FOEZQkZOBkuVf… 1/1

Fw: Streetscape project

Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Wed 11/15/2023 11:54 AM
To: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 

Alyssa;

We are losing our POC from SEDA-COG related to CDBG, Mitzi Gallagher-Long.   Her replacement is Tyler
Dombroski.  Please place this in the Council packet as a fyi.  Thank you

Donald L. Holderman
Assistant Borough Manager
Bellefonte Borough
814-355-1501 extension 215

From: Gallagher-Long, Mitzi <mgallagherlong@seda-cog.org>
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 9:56 AM
To: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Cc: Dombroski, Tyler <tdombroski@seda-cog.org>
Subject: Streetscape project
 
Don,
Following up to our phone conversa�on regarding my departure from SEDA-COG, please send all correspondence
regarding the project to Tyler Dombroski, cc’d on this email.  I did let Brian know this morning of my last date at
SEDA-COG, and for him to ensure he sends the punch list and substan�al comple�on cer�ficate to Angie
Hunselman (labor compliance staff).  This was record �me to construct this project and I can’t wait to see it and
use the parking lot!  😊
 
Mitzi Gallagher-Long | Senior Project Coordinator
Community Development
SEDA-Council of Governments
201 Furnace Road
Lewisburg, PA 17837
(570) 772-4801 (cell)
(570) 524-4491 ext. 7279
www.seda-cog.org | mgallagherlong@seda-cog.org

                   SEDA-COG…Building Strong Economies & Strong Communities
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 45 of 203

http://www.seda-cog.org/
mailto:mgallagherlong@seda-cog.org


Christian Larson

Bellefonte Area High School

142 Rosehill Drive, Bellefonte, PA 16823

(308) 390-2697

Larsoncchristian@gmail.com

November 7, 2023

Bellefonte Borough Council Members

Bellefonte Borough

236 W Lamb St, Bellefonte, PA 16823

To Whom It May Concern,

I am currently a junior at Bellefonte Area High School, and I am graduating in June 2025. I am

writing to express my interest in becoming a Junior Borough Council member within the

Bellefonte Borough. I believe I would make the best candidate for becoming a Junior Council

member because my leadership skills, experience, and aspirations are all qualities you are

looking for. At school, I display leadership in numerous clubs. Currently, I actively participate in

our class cabinet, the Raider Revolution (PBIS program) student team, and our National Honor

Society chapter. In addition, I am the secretary for our Future Business Leaders of America, or

FBLA, club. Other than clubs, I am not involved in other extracurricular activities, however, my

time is not squandered. I busily partake in many community service opportunities. Every year I

work with elementary school students at the Marion Walker Holiday Workshop. I also work with

our Spanish Honor Society club to find new opportunities to help our community such as

assisting with our “Family Reading Night” activities. In the last year, I have also worked with

advisors to assist in the advancement of a school clothing drive, 2-the-9’s, that helps increase the

availability of business clothing to more students. I enjoy helping the community as often as

possible. In addition, my hard work can be noted in my awards. In school, I achieve

distinguished honors every quarter with a cumulative GPA of 97%. I have also been recognized

through a College Board National Recognition Program, and I have been awarded the National

Rural and Small Town Recognition Program for my outstanding academic achievement. My high

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 46 of 203



school goal is to achieve departmental honors in at least four subjects. When I graduate, I plan to

continue my education in college by obtaining a bachelor's degree in Biology. With my

leadership skills aside, I would like to discuss why I would like to be a Junior Council member.

This opportunity will allow me to get involved in my local community and will allow me to

enhance various skills such as advocacy, leadership, and networking. Overall, I would like to be

a Junior Council member because of the opportunities and the experiences that come along.

Please contact me at Larsoncchristian@gmail.com if you need any further information. Thank

you for this opportunity, and I look forward to hearing from you.

Cordially,

Christian Larson

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 47 of 203

Christian Larson

Christian Larson



A  P R O G R A M  O F

THE PENNSYLVANIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF BOROUGHS

THE JUNIOR COUNCIL PERSON PROGRAM

J C P  U P D A T E

BOROUGH INFORMATION

Borough Name:  __________________________________   County:  _______________________________

Contact:  _____________________________________________________________________________________

Address:  _____________________________________________________________________________________

City: _______________________________________   State: _______   Zip:  ___________________________

Email: _____________________________________   Phone:  ________________________________________

STUDENT INFORMATION

Name:  _______________________________________________________________________________________

Address:  _____________________________________________________________________________________

City: _______________________________________   State: _______   Zip:  ___________________________

❑ High School Student        ❑ College Student       Graduation Year:  _______________

List up to four school activities and positions held:   ____________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

List up to three extracurricular, volunteer, or community activities:  ___________________   

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

List up to three honors or awards:  ________________________________________________________   

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

Graduation plans (if known):  ______________________________________________________________   

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

Why did you become a Junior Council Person?  __________________________________________   

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________

PA

PA

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 48 of 203



The Junior Council Person (JCP) Program provides youth in 
your community with an opportunity to engage in borough 

government and develop leadership skills. It also allows 
borough officials to serve as mentors to students who will be 

future leaders in their communities.

Wesleyville Borough, Erie County established the first JCP Program in 1999. The 
model has since been widely adopted by boroughs throughout the Commonwealth. 
The Pennsylvania State Association of Boroughs (PSAB) is committed to the success 
of this program and encourages participation from each of the 956 boroughs.

A JCP Program allows high school and college students the opportunity to learn 
critical skills including team building and collaboration, public speaking, public en-
gagement, budgeting, and running effective meetings. It also allows the student the 
opportunity to deliberate on issues that are affecting his or her community.

Borough administrators or officials should consider visiting local high schools and 
colleges to promote the program. You may want to consider speaking at the school’s 
career day, meeting with members of student council, or providing an interview with 
a student newspaper.

Additionally, you can discuss community service, class, or internship credit with the 
school or university. PSAB has resources available to support your visit.

Distinguished JCP Award
PSAB recognizes JCPs who have met certain criteria with a Distinguished Junior 
Council Person Award. A PSAB board or staff member will attend your council meet-
ing and present a plaque in recognition of the JCP’s commitment to your borough. 
Photos will be published in the Borough News magazine and on PSAB’s website.

To learn more about scheduling an award presentation, visit www.boroughs.org  
and select “Programs,” then “Junior Council Person Program,” or contact  
Stephanie Drake,  JCP Program Director, at sdrake@boroughs.org.

Junior Council Person Update
When your borough selects a Junior Council Person, please have the JCP complete 
the form on the reverse side and return it to PSAB. We encourage you to email a pic-
ture, preferably a headshot, as a jpg attachment, or mail a hard copy for publication 
in the Borough News magazine. Submissions may be edited for space constraints.
Return the form to Stephanie Drake at sdrake@boroughs.org or by mail to  
2941 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110.

Suggested JCP Program Guidelines
Here are some things to consider when implementing a JCP Program. Your borough 
can adopt guidelines to fit the needs of your program.

•  JCPs should be a borough resident.

•  Boroughs can have more than one JCP serving at a time.

•  High school and college students are encouraged to apply.

•   Students should write a letter of interest to borough council outlining why they 
want to be a JCP.

•    An interview process with council members may occur if there are several  
applicants.

•   Your borough needs to pass a resolution to participate in the program.

•   Once selected, the JCP should take the “Junior Council Person Pledge.”

•   JCPs may be appointed to one-or two-year terms.

•   Attendance should be required at monthly meetings.

•   JCPs should be seated with council, participate in borough business, and observe 
all council rules.

•   JCPs cannot vote or participate in executive session.

•    Attendance at budget sessions, public hearings, and community events should 
be encouraged.

•   JCPs can attend PSAB annual or fall conferences.

•   To earn the Distinguished JCP Award, the student should serve for a minimum of 
six months, having attended a majority of council meetings.

Helpful Resources
Visit PSAB’s website, www.boroughs.org, and select “Programs” and select  
“Junior Council Person Program.” On this page you can find a sample resolution, JCP 
Pledge, enrollment brochure, Guide to Borough Government, sample press releases, 
and other resources. 

PENNSYLV
A

N
IA

 S
TATE  ASSOCIATIO

N
 O

F B
O

RO
UGHS

PA State Association of Boroughs  
Junior Council Person Program
Christopher Cap, Executive Director
2941 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110

For More Information Contact
Stephanie Drake, JCP Program Director 
sdrake@boroughs.org 
800-232-7722, Ext. 1017   |   Fax: 717-236-8289

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 49 of 203



11/16/23, 9:29 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAEcZAnMx6AFPtLvybPe1sv… 1/2

RE: Expo Invitation

Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>
Wed 11/15/2023 3:23 PM
To: Ballreich, Ilona <ixb20@psu.edu> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

Thank you Ilona!  We will make sure our elected officials receive this. 
 
Take care,
Ralph
 
__
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager
Borough of Bellefonte
236 West Lamb Street
Bellefonte PA 16823
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214

 
From: Ballreich, Ilona <ixb20@psu.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 2:39 PM
To: Ballreich, Ilona <ixb20@psu.edu>
Subject: Expo Invita�on
 
Dear SCC Project Community Partner:

 

The fall semester is quickly coming to an end, and we hope that your experience in partnership with a Penn State class has been posi�ve. Students
benefit greatly from the experience and we for the opportunity to engage with the Sustainable Communi�es Collabora�ve.
 
In celebra�on of student-community work, the Sustainable Communi�es Collabora�ve is planning its semi-annual Campus and Community
Sustainability EXPO for Dec. 7, 2023, from 5 - 7 pm in the State College Municipal Building, 243 S. Allen Street in State College.

 

The EXPO is an opportunity to become familiar with all of this semester's partnership projects in a poster-style exhibi�on. The EXPO can also help
iden�fy or define future student projects in partnership with your organiza�on or community. 

 

The event is open to the public. It is a�ended by Penn State faculty and administrators, students, and community partners, and we welcome you to
extend the invita�on to your cons�tuents, board members, and affiliates.

 

We look forward to seeing you on December 7th! Please feel free to contact me with any ques�ons.
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 50 of 203



11/16/23, 9:29 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAEcZAnMx6AFPtLvybPe1sv… 2/2

 

Ilona Ballreich

Penn State University 

Penn State Sustainability

Sustainable Communities Collaborative 

Program Director

104 Land & Water Research Building

University Park, PA 16802

(814) 865-2291 (o)

(814) 599-6000 (c)

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 51 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 52 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 53 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 54 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 55 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 56 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 57 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 58 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 59 of 203



11/16/23, 11:18 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAD7KcNTUzZZIifh%2FsM7r… 1/2

Fwd: Centre County Solar and EV Charger Co-op in 2024?

Doug Johnson <djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>
Thu 11/16/2023 10:45 AM
To: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Doug Johnson <djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 10:45:28 AM
To: Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Centre County Solar and EV Charger Co-op in 2024?
 

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Joanne Tos�-Vasey <jtos�-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 11:15:04 PM
To: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>; Doug Johnson <djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Centre County Solar and EV Charger Co-op in 2024?
 
Could we put this on one of the agendas before the end of the year?
Thanks
Joanne 

Get Outlook for Android

From: Monica Carey <mcarey@solarunitedneighbors.org>
Sent: Monday, November 13, 2023 10:14:44 AM
To: Joanne Tos�-Vasey <jtos�-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; mprendergast@bellefonte.net
<mprendergast@bellefonte.net>; John Franek <jfranek@centrecountypa.gov>; npollock@crcog.net <npollock@crcog.net>; abrumbaugh@collegetownship.org
<abrumbaugh@collegetownship.org>; dpribulka@twp.ferguson.pa.us <dpribulka@twp.ferguson.pa.us>; ramakong1@gmail.com <ramakong1@gmail.com>;
bwhitman@twp.pa�on.pa.us <bwhitman@twp.pa�on.pa.us>; lpegher@twp.pa�on.pa.us <lpegher@twp.pa�on.pa.us>; sweston@twp.pa�on.pa.us
<sweston@twp.pa�on.pa.us>; peterbuck@psu.edu <peterbuck@psu.edu>; pgb45@psu.edu <pgb45@psu.edu>; meh200@psu.edu <meh200@psu.edu>;
jfields@statecollegepa.us <jfields@statecollegepa.us>
Cc: Adams, Pam <padams@crcog.net>
Subject: Centre County Solar and EV Charger Co-op in 2024?
 
Hi everyone,

I hope you are all doing well! I’m writing to you all to see if you have interest in partnering with SUN on a second Centre County Solar Co-op.

Pam Adams and I have already spoken and it seems like launching in March 2024 will be the best timing for the Centre Region Council of
Governments. This is also great because then we can promote the co-op at Earth Day events in April, as well as in the summer. 

This will again be a Solar and EV Charger Co-op, so co-op members will be able to receive a proposal for solar, a Level 2 EV charger, and/or for
battery back-up.

Are you interested in being a partner? Do you know of other organizations or local governments in the county who might be interested as well?
If so, we can convene a planning call, gathering interested partners to start laying out a timeline and strategy for the co-op. 

Please let me know if you have any thoughts or questions! 

Best,
-Monica

------------------------------
Monica Carey (she/her/hers)
Pennsylvania Program Director
Solar United Neighbors
Solar saves Pittsburgh families

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 60 of 203

https://aka.ms/o0ukef
https://aka.ms/o0ukef
https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg
https://secure.givelively.org/donate/solar-united-neighbors/donate-now-help-low-income-households-in-allegheny-county-pa-go-solar
https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/
https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/


11/16/23, 11:18 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAD7KcNTUzZZIifh%2FsM7r… 2/2

Ways to Support Solar:     Go Solar     Volunteer     Donate Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 61 of 203

https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/go-solar/
https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/get-involved-with-solar-united-neighbors/volunteer/
https://www.solarunitedneighbors.org/donate/


BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 
November 6, 2023- 7:30 p.m. 

236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
The November 6, 2023 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 
p.m. 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (followed by a moment of silence) 
 
III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 
     Mr. Randall Brachbill  
     Ms. Deborah Cleeton  
     Ms. Barbara Dann 
     Mr. Douglas Johnson  
     Ms. Shawna McKean (Excused) 
     Ms. Rita Purnell 
     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick 
     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 
     Mayor Buddy Johnson  
   
STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
    Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  
    Ms. Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator 
    Ms. Julie Brooks, Assistant Superintendent Public Works 
    Mr. Shawn Weaver, Chief of Police 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 NONE 
 
V.PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments 
 
Peter Seraphine, a resident of E. High Street spoke regarding the addition of an off-leash dog park 
to the Borough. 

 
Jerome Kinney, a resident of Elm Street spoke regarding the ongoing issue at the residence at Pine 
Circle in Parkview. The resident noted that there is still no fence surrounding the property which 
the resident feels is a significant safety issue.  

 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 62 of 203

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Nov 6, 2023 
Page 2 
 
VI. COMMUNICATIONS  
 Bellefonte Borough Council is invited to attend CentreCare Celebrating 10 years as a nonprofit 
on Thursday, November 9th from 1:00-3:00 pm. RSVP is requested. No council action is 
requested. 
 
C-NET Membership dues increase for 2024. No council action is requested. 

 
A comment was received on Bellefonte Waterfront Associates' request for Code Service options. 
No council action is requested. 

 
Complaint of drug paraphernalia in the store windows along Allegheny Street. This complaint 
was forwarded to the police department’s Chief of Police for review. No council action is needed. 

 
Historic Bellefonte Inc. Requests for the Borough for Santa’s House & Community Decorating 
Day, Saturday, November 18th, 2023.  

 
Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve providing staff to help with 
Decorating Day on Saturday, November 18th, 2023. Discussion included clarification that the 
public is invited. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                    --- 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 
 

1. General  Council Meeting Minutes October 16, 2023 
2. Finance  Budget V. Actual September 2023 
3. Finance   Budget V. Actual Summary September 2023 
4. Finance  Stover McGlaughlin Invoice September 2023 
5. Finance Treasurer’s Report September 2023 
6. Finance  Voucher Summary September 2023 

 
Tosti-Vasey requested to remove item 2 from the Consent Agenda.  
 
Brachbill motioned and Dann seconded to approve the Consent Agenda items 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6. 
No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion to approve the 5 remaining Consent Agenda items carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                    --- 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 63 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Nov 6, 2023 
Page 3 
 

Tosti-Vasey questioned line 497.000.000 in the Bulk Water Fund. She asked if the large deficit 
created in this fund from this line item would require a return of some of the shared funds from 
the Bellefonte Water Authority. As the answer was not available, Tosti-Vasey motioned and 
Dann seconded to table Consent Agenda item 2. No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion to table 
Consent Agenda item 2 carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                    --- 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

VIII. REPORTS   
Mayor Johnson  
Halloween night report. Mayor Johnson enjoyed celebrating Halloween in the community.  

 
Police – Chief Weaver  
NONE 

  
Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 
 
1. Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 

 NONE 
 

 2. Administrative Approvals:  
NONE  

 
3. Items of interest:  
The next HARB meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 14, 2023, at 8:30 a.m. in Council 
Chambers. As of this evening, there are no projects to present, so this meeting might be canceled 
next week. 
The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, November 13, 2023, at 5:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers. The meeting will be a review of the Elementary School Development Plan.  
The Zoning Hearing Board had a meeting last week to hear 2 cases.  

o One case was the determination meeting for 1304 Summit Drive. The Board 
voted unanimously to not allow this STR to operate on an unlimited basis 
throughout the calendar year. The STR at that location now has a maximum of 
138 days per calendar year.  
 

o The second case was a variance request for 131 N Thomas Street to divide the 
lot into 3 separate parcels. The request was granted.   

 
IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

The Bellefonte EMS provided additional information in response to questions raised during 
the October 2nd, 2023 Budget Work Session.  No council action is requested at this time. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 64 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Nov 6, 2023 
Page 4 
 

Parkview Blvd and Zion Road Traffic Light. The Borough would like to get the PennDOT 
required traffic light at Parkview Blvd and Zion Road installed in 2024.  Council originally 
approved the Agreement with our traffic signal engineer with the condition that the design 
phase not be started until more is known about changes at Airport and Zion Roads. 

 
Cleeton motioned and Brachbill seconded to move to the design phase for the Traffic Light so 
that a signal can be installed in 2024. Discussion included Tosti-Vasey asking multiple 
questions regarding this project on how this move ahead might be impacted if the school’s 
light at Zion and Airport Roads would result in us having additional costs to do a second 
installment. After several questions, Stewart indicated that should there be a change in the 
intersection (an unlikely probability at this point), the Borough would not incur additional 
cost..  Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 
Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                     --- 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 
 

Update on 1201 Pine Circle/Encroachment by the property owner – the 60-day timeline to 
remove the encroachment has expired with no activity. The property owner has hired an 
attorney who has been in contact with the Borough and Authority Solicitors. A conference call 
with the attorneys is being scheduled. No action is requested at this time. 

 
Update on 3rd Party Commercial Inspectors meeting. Meetings were held with our current code 
services provider and the requester, Tom Songer of Bellefonte Waterfront Associates. 
Questions were asked as to the start date of the project on the Waterfront Development 
property. No start date was given. The committee may recommend other options when a start 
date is provided. No action is requested at this time. 

 
Wood Street Stormwater Project. Work is underway and should be completed by mid-
November. No council action is requested. 

 
Parkview Heights Stormwater Project. Work is expected to begin in December. No council 
action is requested. 

 
Property at Burrowes and Cowdrick with nuisance code violations. The Borough is working 
with the property owner who has some medical issues to resolve the issues. No council action 
required - this is an update on the situation. 

 
X.  NEW BUSINESS 
 Request John Nastase Construction Application and Certificate for Payment No. 2 for Spring 
Street Streetscape Project. 

 
Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to remit payment to John Nastase Construction for 
the Spring Street Streetscape Project Application No. 2. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 65 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Nov 6, 2023 
Page 5 
 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                     --- 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

 
Nuisance Code Administrator Vacancy Update. The new administrator, Steven Barr, started 
this morning. No council action is requested. 

 
Borough Offices will be closed on Friday, November 10th in observance of Veterans Day and 
Thursday, November 23rd for Thanksgiving. No council action is requested. 

 
There will be no Brush/ Grass Pick-up on Wednesday, November 8th. The last day for Brush/ 
Grass Curbside pick-up will be Wednesday, November 15th. No council action is requested. 

 
Musser Lane Compost Facility – Season closing for Saturday access/last Day open – 
November 18th. No action requested. 

 
XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Members may offer comments regarding various events and issues within the Borough.  

 
Mrs. Purnell mentioned there is a meeting for the Convention of States Group on Saturday, 
November 25, 2023 at Watermarke Church at 10:00 am. Their website is 
https://conventionofstates.com/ 

  
Ms. Cleeton presented about the PA Library Association. She recognized Denise Sticha, 
Executive Director of the Centre County Historical Museum and Library system for    her 
receiving the PA Library Association’s Distinguished Services Award.  She also raised a concern 
about a mature tree that appeared to be healthy on the Borough property at the Reservoir Building; 
she asked if there could have been an option, other than removal, of this tree. Stewart said it was 
taken down because of complaints received in the office.  

   
Tosti-Vasey reminded the public about the election. She then mentioned that there was a planting 
of bushes and wildflowers on the Peninsula in Talleyrand Park to help reduce future erosion 
threats.; Clearwater Conservancy, the Centre County Recycling Center, Don Holderman, and 
Tosti-Vasey and her husband helped with these plantings. She also reported on her attendance at 
the Pennsylvania Municipal Leagues’  Sustainability Conference. She donated a rain barrel to the 
borough that she made at this conference. She also talked about sustainability and presented 
several handouts that could be useful for the borough’s work on various issues of sustainability 
and emergency management.  

 
Mr. Brachbill made comments about the motion to table the EV charging stations. He encouraged 
council to follow Robert’s Rules more carefully during business meetings. He feels an apology to 
Council is in order for the misinformation that was presented. 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 66 of 203

https://conventionofstates.com/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Nov 6, 2023 
Page 6 
 
Mr. Holderman offered kudos to the chief and Mayor for their participation with the community 
during Halloween.  He is also very happy to be at the meeting tonight. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 67 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 68 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 69 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 70 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 71 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 72 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 73 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 74 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 75 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 76 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 77 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 78 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 79 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 80 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 81 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 82 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 83 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 84 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 85 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 86 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 87 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 88 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 89 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 90 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 91 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 92 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 93 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 94 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 95 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 96 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 97 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 98 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 99 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 100 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 101 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 102 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 103 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 104 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 105 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 106 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 107 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 108 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 109 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 110 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 111 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 112 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 113 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 114 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 115 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 116 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 117 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 118 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 119 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 120 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 121 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 122 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 123 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 124 of 203



 

 
          

PROCLAMATION 

 
A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE, CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 
PROCLAIMING NOVEMBER 25, 2023 AS SMALL BUSINESS SATURDAY. 
  

WHEREAS,  The Borough of Bellefonte recognizes the importance of small business as the  

   glue that holds communities together. Nation-wide small businesses created more  

   than two-thirds of the net new jobs over the past two decades; and 

 

WHEREAS,  advocacy groups and public and private organizations across the country have  

   endorsed the Saturday after Thanksgiving as Small Business Saturday; and 

 

WHEREAS,  one of Bellefonte’s great assets is its unique array of locally owned and operated,  

   independent businesses which are part of the fabric of the community; and 

 

WHEREAS,  local business owners and operators invest in Bellefonte and contribute to the  

   local economy, offer quality jobs for residents, engage in civic concerns, support  

   local initiatives, and are essential to our success as a community; and 

 

WHEREAS,  support of these businesses is critical to maintaining a socially, environmentally,  

   and financially sustainable and vibrant community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT I, Buddy Johnson, Mayor of Bellefonte Borough, do 

hereby proclaim November 25, 2023 as “Small Business Saturday” in Bellefonte and encourage all to 

support local businesses by buying locally on November 25th and throughout the year.  

 

Dated this 20th day of November 2023. 

 
     

      ______________________________ 

           Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor 

              

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 125 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 126 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 127 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 128 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 129 of 203



October Parking Enforcement and Animal Control Report 

 

 

 

 

            

 

 

 

Total parking tickets issued:   287 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 130 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 131 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 132 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 133 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 134 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 135 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 136 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 137 of 203



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM: Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting November 20, 2023 

 
HARB: 

 
HARB did not meet on November 14, 2023, due to there being no projects to review. In lieu 
of a review meeting, several members of HARB and I met with Jessica Stuck from 
Landmarks SGA for a virtual kick-off meeting. We used this time to review the scope of 
work/timeline, establish communication protocols, discuss the type of 
data/documentation that the Landmarks SGA team would like to request, and discuss 
logistics for the existing building inventory and future public meetings. Jessica felt 
confident that the project would be wrapped up by the CLG grant deadline, which is 
September 2024.  
 
The next HARB meeting will be Tuesday, November 28 at 8:30 a.m. in Council Chambers. 
It’s a slow time of year for house and building projects, so it’s possible this meeting will be 
canceled.  
 
 

ZONING: 
 

The Zoning Hearing Board will meet on Wednesday, November 29 at 5:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers. This meeting is to hear a dimensional variance request for 410 E. Bishop Street. 
The applicant is requesting relief from the maximum height regulation of accessory 
structures to put two sheds in the backyard that will exceed the 10-foot maximum.  
 
 

PLANNING: 
 
The Planning Commission met on Monday, November 13 at 5:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers to review the new Bellefonte Elementary LDP as well as drafts of the 
beekeeping ordinance and an amendment to the Bed & Breakfast ordinance to include 
language that would allow micro events. The agenda and draft minutes are in your packet.  
 
On Wednesday, November 15, I met on site with Borough Engineer, Don Franson, and Doug 
Weikel from HRG to walk the site of the proposed Bellefonte Elementary Building.  
 
The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, December 11 at 5:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers to review the technical comments from Don Franson regarding the Stormwater 
Plan.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 138 of 203



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

 
Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission met on Thursday, November 16 at 6:00 p.m. 
at Bellefonte Borough.  
 
Rob Pacella from the Logan Fire Company spoke in favor of having the other fire companies 
within the Region complete the fire study questionnaire, which has only been completed by 
Bellefonte (Logans and Undines). This questionnaire will inform that fire study that DCED 
is offering free of charge to the Nittany Valley Joint Planning Region as part of their goals 
outlined in the 2019 Comprehensive Plan update. Unfortunately, fire companies are not 
cooperating with completing the questionnaire, therefore delaying the study. It was 
decided that the NVJPC would give one final push to get the companies to complete the 
survey and, if not completed by the January 18, 2024 meeting, that Elizabeth Lose would 
inform DCED to do the study for Bellefonte only.  
 
Bob Watts, the transportation engineer for Benner Township, presented a draft letter of 
support for the Benner Pike corridor project to be included on the CCMPO TIP. The NVJPC 
will review the letter and make a recommendation at the January 18, 2024 meeting.  
 
There was discussion about the CCMPO consolidation, more specifically to limit the size of 
voting members on the technical committee. There was concern from the NVJPC that 
downsizing the technical committee would result a loss of representation from the smaller 
municipalities, such as those in the NVJP Region. Walker Township Board of Supervisors 
sent a letter to the MPO expressing these concerns.  
 
 
The Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission Meeting Schedule for 2024 is as follows: 
 January 18th   Spring Township 
 March 21st   Benner Township 
 May 16th  Marion Township 
 July 18th  Walker Township 
 September 19th   Bellefonte Borough 
 November 21st   Spring Township 
 
 Benner Township 1224 Buffalo Run Road, Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 Marion Township 4337 Jacksonville Road, Howard, PA 16841 
 Walker Township 816 Nittany Valley Drive, Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 Bellefonte Borough 236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 Spring Township 1309 Blanchard Street, Bellefonte, PA 16823 
 
 All meetings start at 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 139 of 203



AGENDA 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION  
236 W. LAMB STREET, BELLEFONTE PA 16823 
DATE: NOVEMBER 13TH, 2023 TIME: 5:00 P.M. 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:  
 

Mr. Robert Dannaker, Chairman 
Mr. Chris Morelli 
Mr. Mark Edwards  
Mr. James Mills 
Mr. David Lomison  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: September 11, 2023 meeting minutes.   
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES:  
 
Bellefonte Elementary School 

• Don Franson, Borough engineer, picked up the plans on 10/31/2023. His comments will 
be available for review by the next Planning Commission meeting on December 11, 
2023.  

• Sewage and Utility Plan 
• Post Construction Stormwater Management Report 
• County Planning Office review comments 

 
Ralph, Don, Julie, and I met with Doug Weikel and Nichole Mendinsky from HRG on 10/30/2023 
to discuss the timeline for the project. The Borough would like the school to complete a traffic 
study with PennDOT before approval of the LDP, or at least provide a legal agreement / bond 
that results from the traffic study will be implemented.  
 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS:  
 
Short-Term Rental (to be considered for 2024 or 2025) 

• Allow owner-occupied only in R-1 and R-2 zoning districts.  
o Limit the number of STRs somehow (radius from one another? Cap?) 
o I already have an unofficial “waiting list” of residents that were denied a STR that 

I would reach out to first.  
 

• Allow both long-term and short-term. (Long-term rentals would not count against the 
maximum days of short-term)  

 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 
OLD BUSINESS: 

• Bee Keeping Ordinance (draft) 
• Micro event amendment to Bed & Breakfast ordinance (draft) 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: ____1ST ____2ND   TIME: ______ 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 140 of 203



 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
November 13, 2023 – 5:00 p.m.  

236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
The November 13, 2023 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission was called to 
order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT  Robert Dannaker, Chair      
    Chris Morelli  
    David Lomison  
    Mark Edwards 
    James Mills, Secretary 
 
STAFF MEMBERS  Gina Thompson, Zoning Administrator  
 
GUESTS   Nichole Mendinksy, HRG 
    Doug Weikel, HRG 
    Julie Brooks, Bellefonte Borough 
    Joseph A Leiter, Resident 
    Bobbie & Doug Barnett, Resident 
    Joanne Tosti-Vasey, Council 
    Debbie Cleeton, Council 
    Doug Johnson, Council 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
Lomison moved to approve the September 11, 2023 minutes; Edwards seconded.  Motion 
carried.   
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 
Bellefonte Elementary School (Occupancy Date of Fall, 2026) 

• Borough staff met with Doug Weikel and Nichole Mendinsky from HRG on 10/30/2023 
to discuss the timeline for the project. The Borough requests school to complete a 
traffic study with PennDOT before approval of the LDP, or at least provide a legal 
agreement / bond that results from the traffic study will be implemented. 
 

• Don Franson, Borough engineer, will provide technical comments for review by the next 
Planning Commission meeting on December 11, 2023. 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 141 of 203

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
November 13, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 

• All construction dates are working backwards from the anticipated occupancy date of 
Fall, 2026 (2-year construction window). 
 

• The organizers are hoping to get the contracts out for bid in Feb/March 2024. 
 

• Comments from Bob Dannaker  
o Highway Occupancy Permit - 3 step process has not been completed yet.  

 Step 1 – Scoping out a location (this process was completed but will need 
to be re-done, as the parent drop off/bus entrances were swapped.) 

 Step 2 (after approval of Step 1) – Traffic Impact Study (off site study of 
the intersection of Bishop and Governor’s Park/Airport Road.) This step 
will likely be completed in June 2024. 

 (It was not stated what Step 3 is or what the expected completion date is) 
 Plan needs to be revised to show curb cuts.  

o Stormwater Review is forthcoming 
o Site Plan B – 24’ Finger Concrete vs Grass – creates more of a safety barrier for 

pedestrians (bus loop/parent drop off) 
o 10’ wide path from High School to Elementary – the purpose of a path is to walk 

on it and use it for access between the buildings. Path will likely be gravel. It was 
suggested that paths be lighted. A concern was raised about light pollution. 
 Lighting – more information on lighting will be provided 
 Safety – Fire and emergency officials will be reviewing all plans for safety  
 Signage and pavement Markings/School Zone Signs – These plans will be 

added to the plans at a later date. 
 Bikeway (Site Plan B) –  
 Grading Plan A (Stormwater discharge) – there was a concern about a 

sinkhole and it was clarified that this is not a sinkhole.  
 Landscaping Plan/Site Stabilization – erosion control. The landscaping 

plan will follow all borough ordinances. The final landscaping plan will be 
completed at a later date on construction plans. Landscaping plans are 
not typically included in a Land Development Permit. It was suggested 
that educational gardens or natural areas be incorporated into the 
property. It was clarified that there are preliminary plans for educational 
outdoor learning areas.    

 Internet – the buildings will likely be all wireless. Electric and 
communication lines must be kept separate.  

 Fire Hydrants – The plans will be reviewed by fire and emergency officials 
to ensure all safety measures are met.  

 Building Address – an address will not be established until there is a 
physical structure in place. The plan is to have the address be Governor’s 
Park Road if possible.  

 Gas Line – will likely go down the roadway. 
 Emergency Generator – The building will have an emergency generator 

in the mechanical yard.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 142 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
November 13, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

 Parent loop/Bus Loop – Both loops will be separated during drop off and 
pick up hours but they are connected so that after hours public can use 
both areas.  

 Walkers and Bussed students – There was a discussion regarding safety 
of walking students and safety of bussed students when they are being 
dropped off. It was clarified that all safety measures will be followed to 
keep students safe during pickup and drop off times.   

 Solar Panels – Solar panels are not in the plans at the moment.  
• School consolidation – currently the plan is to have this school replace Bellefonte 

Elementary. It has not yet been determined what other schools may also be combined. 
The capacity is designed to accommodate at least 2 schools.  

• It was clarified what parts of the building are designated for which grades. The building 
will be 2 floors. The wings will be classrooms. The common areas will be the middle 
area.  

• Sewage and Utility Plan 
• Post Construction Stormwater Management Report 

 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS: (in order of priority) 
 
Short-Term Rental (to be considered for 2024 or 2025) 
Ms. Thompson brought up discussion for possible amendments to the short-term rental 
ordinance:  

• Allow a limited number of owner-occupied only in R-1 and R-2 zoning districts. 
• How would the limits be made? Radius from one another or a specific cap? 
• Ms. Thompson has an unofficial “waiting list” of residents that were denied an owner-

occupied STR. She would reach out to those residents first to see if they were still 
interested in doing an owner-occupied STR.  

• Allow STRS to do both long-term and short-term. (Long-term rentals would not count 
against the maximum days of short-term). Currently R-1 and R-2 cannot do both, which 
limits being able to accommodate longer-term rentals, such as traveling nurses, etc. 

• There was discussion of owner vs. non-owner-occupied and the implications for 
housing availability and affordability regarding the latter being permitted. This is why 
most townships and municipalities, especially local ones, don’t allow non-owner-
occupied.  

 
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
Ms. Thompson presented that there is another Smokers Square is coming into the Borough – 
which will make it four in total that are designated as “smoke shops”.  

• The new Smokers Square will be located at 205 Park Place, Suite 2 & 3, next to the 
former URBN on Zion Road.  

• The new business requires a zoning permit and a change of use from Centre Region 
Code, since it’s changing from a B (Business) to a M (Mercantile). Ms. Thompson 
reached out to the business owner to initiate this process.  

• Discussion regarding vape shops and drug items in store windows 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 143 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
November 13, 2023, Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 
 

• Ms. Thompson brought up the speculation that the influx of vape / smoke shops could 
be in anticipation of the legalization of marijuana in Pennsylvania, and the hopes of 
being able to sell legal marijuana in the shops.  

• It would be good for the Borough to get “ahead” of this possibility and regulate the sale 
of legal marijuana by these shops, if possible.  

• Ms. Thompson mentioned that the Borough may be able to regulate different types of 
businesses, so long as that business is permitted somewhere within the Nittany Valley 
Join Region. However, legal input on this would be needed.  

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
Bee Keeping Ordinance (draft) 

• Discussion regarding nuisance bee keepers 
o It was suggested that the borough may want to consult professional bee keepers 

in drafting the ordinance to ensure that all requirements are met – someone 
educated in beekeeping would be useful. 

o Discussion regarding lot sizes, number of hives per lot size, renters vs 
homeowners, etc. 

 
Micro event amendment to Bed & Breakfast ordinance (draft) 

• Discussion regarding the ramifications of allowing this type of venue. It was mentioned 
that Bed & Breakfasts likely already hold events, but they are so small and 
inconspicuous that they don’t raise any concern.  

• Opening up to allowing Bed & Breakfasts be larger event spaces starts to question the 
intent of the residential district – now it becomes a commercial enterprise.  

• Planning Commission recommended Ms. Thompson not continue research on micro 
events and to unofficially “table” this topic. There was a general consensus that the 
Planning Commission was not in favor of exploring at micro events to Bed & Breakfasts 
at this time.  

 
 
NEW BUSINESS: NONE 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
Lomison moved to adjourn; Morelli seconded. Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 6:32 p.m.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 144 of 203



 

 
 

To: Council 

From: Ralph 

Date: November 16, 2023 

Subject: Borough Manager’s Report – October 2023 
 
Operations/Staff Updates: 

➢ Annual Budget Work – The review of Funds in preparation of approving a 2024 

budget is underway.  We are on track for approving a tentative budget on December 

4th.  The tentative budget will be advertised for public inspection and scheduled for 

final approval/adoption on December 18th.   

➢ Armory building/Spring Street – The elevator shaft construction is progressing. 

We have project meetings every two weeks.  Various other smaller projects are in 

phases of completion.  Even though the elevator work will not be completed, our goal 

is to use the large meeting room starting with the December 18th council meeting.   

➢ Bandshell Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) – A committee appointed by 

council has met with this group and asked that they complete the checklist related to 

the MOU.     

➢ Big Spring Cover project – Some Authority representatives met with PA DEP 

personnel on November 15th regarding the cover.  PA DEP is reviewing the concepts 

presented and will be in touch.     

➢  Former National Guard Armory property along Zion Road – The owner has 

put a hold on the brewery project due to high cost estimates to renovate the 

buildings.  He has not made a final determination yet.   

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 145 of 203



➢ Kepler Pool /Nittany Valley Rec. Authority – The group is trying to manage 

the grant funding that is secured and reaching out for administrative assistance.   

➢ New Elementary School along Airport Road – borough staff have attended some 

virtual meetings held by HRG, the District’s engineer.  The Engineer/District has also 

submitted a Land Development Plan to the Planning Commission.   

➢ Parks/Governors Park/Pickle Ball – Don and I met with Shawn Thompson, 

YMCA Director at Governors Park.  Shawn will be submitting a proposal to take the 

tennis court and lay it out for four pickle ball courts.  We will get the proposal to 

council once received.   

➢ Parks/seasonal personnel – The crews are finishing up for the year.   

➢ Parkview Heights Stormwater Project – The project is scheduled to start in 

December.   

➢ PA Highlands Community College (PHCC) – The PHCC is still very much 

interested in getting established in Bellefonte/Centre County.  They are looking at 

space in the Match Factory.  A lease agreement is being negotiated. Their goal is to 

start classes in the Fall of 2024.  Steve Nunez asked me to serve on his Trustee 

Board which involves attending a few virtual meetings each year.  He also asked 

about a Bellefonte Borough government person serving on their Centre County 

Advisory Council. I recommended Julie Brooks. She will also attend a few virtual 

meetings each year.   

➢ Personnel – We have some department openings due to retirement.  We are going 

through the steps to fill these openings.  We are seeing fewer applications and more 

turn-downs of job offers.  Our new nuisance code administrator, Steve Barr, is on board 

and getting up to speed.    

➢ Refuse Department – personnel changes with inter-department moves.  There is 

a pending retirement at the end of the year.     

➢ SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority (JRA) RR Spur along Potter Street – council 

has approved the purchase of the spur with the rail conditional upon having an 

agreement with Bellefonte Historical Railroad Society (BHRS) regarding access and 

use of the spur.  We have met with BHRS representatives and will be working with 

the solicitors to work out details. 

   

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 146 of 203



➢ Streets – Crews are working on storm drain repairs, pavement patching and sealing. 

This work will continue to finish out the season.  

➢ Streets/Columbia Gas work on East Curtin Street – The new gas line installation 

work is continuing.  East Curtin Street will not have a street paving overlay until 

sometime in 2024.  

➢ Streets/Leaf Collection – leaf collection has been late and off schedule this year to 

due the crews completing street repair projects before the amosite plants close for the 

season.    

➢ Streets/Paving Project – The Borough’s 2023 contracted street paving project is 

complete. 

➢ Streets/Traffic Signal at Parkview and Zion Update – Our engineer has completed 

the survey work and has submitted a grant application.  Council approved work on the 

design phase at the November 6th council meeting.  The engineer was notified to start 

design work.    

➢ Streets/Wood Street Storm Drainage Project – This project is substantially 

complete.   

➢ Waterfront development – A committee of council met with Tom and Tommy 

Songer recently.  The topic was related to options for building code services.  During 

the meeting, a start date was requested and none was given.   

 

 

 

October  Meetings/Activities Attended 

1 ➢ Traveled to PSAB trustee/pension admin. Conference  
➢ Attended first session of conference  

2 ➢ PSAB trustee/pension admin. Conference attendance  

3 ➢ PSAB trustee/pension admin. Conference attendance  

4 ➢ PSAB trustee/pension conference attendance  

5 ➢ Traveled from PSAB trustee/pension admin. Conference  
➢ Scheduled a meeting with Chamber Director – regarding returned 

train  
➢ Centre County Tax Collection Committee meeting  

6 ➢ Met with YMCA director re: pickle ball courts at Governors Park  
➢ Met with Jim Lanning re: Spring Creek Watershed  

7 ➢  

8 ➢  
9 ➢ Virtual meeting re: signage for Penn Highlands Community College 

10 ➢ Meeting to accept donation from Bellefonte Car Cruise/HBI  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 147 of 203



11 ➢   Meeting with BHRS reps to review RR spur agreement details  
➢ Call with rep from LB Water sponsor for CC Boroughs Association 

meeting 
➢ Council agenda planning meeting  

12 ➢ Traveled to PSAB trustee board meeting 
➢ Attended PSAB trustee board meeting  

13 ➢ Vacation day 
➢ Attended PSAB Fall Conference reception  

14 ➢   Attended PSAB Fall Conference sessions  

15 ➢ Attended PSAB Fall Conference Sessions 
➢ Traveled from PSAB Fall Conference  

16 ➢ Department head meeting  
➢ Council work session and business meeting  

17 ➢ Staff meeting  
➢ Authority meeting  

18 ➢   Armory Building Elevator job conference  
➢   CC Boroughs Association meeting  

19 ➢  

20 ➢ Attended CC realtors Association luncheon  

21 ➢  

22 ➢  

23 ➢ Participated in nuisance code administrator interview  

24 ➢ Meeting re: location for bench in Union Cemetery  
➢ Meeting – discuss water connection in Penn Eagle Ind. Park with 

Authority engineer 
25 ➢   Site visit to car lot adjacent to WWTP – encroachment issues  

➢   Met with mayor – personnel issue  
26 ➢   Met with reps of Nittany Valley Rec Authority re pool funds  

➢   Conference call – traffic engineer  
➢   Participated in nuisance code administrator interview  
➢   Airport Authority meeting 

27 ➢    Meeting re code services through CR COG – request for options 
➢   Participated in train return event  

28 ➢  

29 ➢  

30 ➢   Meeting with Tom and Tommy Songer re: options for third party 
building code services request 

➢   Meeting with School District Engineer reps. Re: new elementary 
school  

➢   Meeting with bandshell group re MOU and checklist   
31 ➢   A bandshell group rep stopped in to briefly discuss the meeting 

➢   Meeting with Authority engineer – water system issues  
➢   Staff meeting re: budget preparation  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 148 of 203



 
 
 
 
 

Activities 
Work session and Council Agenda formatting and preparation 

Agenda/Meeting preparation and follow up, coordinate with staff – directives, policy 
questions  

Unscheduled, informal, meetings, calls, emails to/from staff – Department day-to-day 
operations  

Correspondence – elected, fellow staff, residents, business owners, other government 
staff, realtors, customers, etc. via emails, phone calls, letters  

Draft meeting minutes review  
Armory building – focused on getting the elevator installed, related tasks 

Attention will be on the 2024 budget work from now until December 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 149 of 203



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

Municipal Update 

3rd Quarter 2023 

January 1 – September 30 

  

Ambulance Incidents; 

 Total Responses 

o Emergency     1370 total (2022 = 1343, 2019 = 1621)  

 Transported    1027 

 No Patient, Refusal      99 

 Lift Assist       67 

 Deceased       22 

 Cancelled     115   

 Fire/Police Standbys      38 

o Non-Emergency         2 total    

 

 By Municipality;   2023   2022   2019  

o Bellefonte Borough  387 28%  377 28%  578 36% 

o Spring Township  284 21%    244 18%  238 15% 

o Benner Township  222 16%  208 16%  229 14% 

o Boggs Township  172   13%  176 13%   167 10% 

o Milesburg Borough  124    9%  102   8%  141   9% 

o Union Township    51   4%    50   4%    59   4% 

o Howard Township    22   2%    41   3%     26   2% 

o Marion Township      21    2%    26    2%    31   2% 

o Unionville Borough      12     1%    14   1%      3 <1%  

o Huston Township        4 <1%      6 <1%      1      <1%  

o Mutual Aid     71   4%   101   5%    148   9%  

 

Staffing; 

 Career Personnel    22,355 hrs 

 Volunteer Personnel         329 hrs 

 

Fleet Information: 

Unit #  Vehicle    Mileage  Replacement 

 Amb-26-1 2010 Freightliner Ambulance  222,794 miles  2029 

 Amb-26-2 2018 Freightliner Ambulance    95,934 miles  2033  

 Amb-26-3 2019 MB Sprinter Ambulance    58,522 miles  2031 

 Van-26-1 2014 Ford Para-Transit Van             112,328 miles  2026 

 Van-26-2 2009 Ford Para-Transit Van  207,071 miles  2023  

 Van-26-3 2017 Dodge Para-Transit Van   81,227 miles  2029 

 Utility-26-1 2005 Ford F-350 MCI/Utility    93,754 miles  TBD 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 150 of 203



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

2023 Municipal Funding – Received (YTD as of 9/30/23) 

    2023     2022 

o Howard   $4,060  0.50 mill (+)  $  1,538 0.19 mill 

o Union  $14,000 0.50 mill (+)  $10,000 0.35 mill 

o Huston  $     266 0.50 mill (=)  $     266 0.50 mill  

o Milesburg  $  6,100 0.42 mill (+)  $  5,710 0.40 mill  

o Boggs  $23,100 0.40 mill (-)  $28,700 0.50 mill  

o Bellefonte   $24,037 0.25 mill (=)  $25,694 0.25 mill 

o Benner  $14,000 0.22 mill (=)  $14,000 0.22 mill  

o Marion       $  5,000 0.38 mill 

o Spring       $  9,000 0.09 mill 

o Unionville       $         0 0.00 mill 

 

2023 Municipal Funding Utilization – (YTD as of 10/06/23) 

 $10,000 Ambulance Purchase, partial cost, 2010 Freightliner/Horton, Amb 26-1 

 $  1,073 Fuel, vehicle (2 week invoice) 

 $  3,027 Roof replacement loan payment x4 

 $     678 Worker’s Comp premium, x1 pay period 

 $     409 Utility – electric x1 month 

 $  2,049 Equipment/supplies – ambulance inverter replacement, O2 & cylinder hydro   

                        testing, radio batteries 

 $28,529 Payroll, partial x7 pay periods 

 $14,431 Insurance – liability, property, vehicle, portable equipment, umbrella – (6 month) 

 $  1,100           Equipment purchase – portable suction unit x1 

 $  3,323           Vinyl graphics/lettering on new ambulance, partial cost 

 $  9,606 Litter (x3) replacement, annual financing #3 of 4 payments 

 $  6,528 Ambulance Loan payment x4, Freightliner Amb 26-2 

 $  4,158 Ambulance Loan payment x4, Sprinter Amb 26-3 

 $84,912 Total 

 

 $    652 Balance 

 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 151 of 203



 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
POLICE PENSION BOARD MEETING MINUTES “DRAFT”  

In-person, virtual 
November 15th, 4:00 p.m. 

236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER   
 
The meeting began at 4pm.  
 
2. Introductions/Attendees in-person, virtual:   
 
Council President Doug Johnson; Borough Manager Ralph Stewart; Pension Administrator 
Barbara Watson; Finance Director Lori McGowan; Officer Matt Pollock; Officer Bob Igoe; 
William Martin; Scott Martin; Sue Trout; Alyssa Doherty 
 
3. Review of investment performance 
 
William and Scott Martin of Wienken and Associates, provided an overview of the investment 
performance since their involvement in 2010.  Performance has been good and investments are 
in accordance with the Board’s Investment Policies.     
 
4.  Review of Mockenhaupt’s most recent Actuarial Report  
 
Sue Trout of Mochenhaupt Benefits Group provided an overview of the report.   
 
5. Review of Administration for the Plan  
 
Barbara Watson provided and overview of the Plans administrative functions with no problems 
noted.  
 
6. Other updates  
 
None 
 
7. Adjournment 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m.  
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 152 of 203

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Centre County Airport Authority 

Meeting Minutes, October 26th, 2023 
 

Attending: C. Groshel; D. Johnson; R. Finley; H. Mose; G. Khoury; D. Gray;  

L. Lingle; R. Stewart 

 

Additional Attendees: J. Meyer C.M., Executive Director, CCAA; T. Benson, 

Legal Counsel for the Authority 

 

The meeting was convened at 7:00 PM by C. Groshel.  

Public Comments:  None.    

1. Approval of the September 28th, 2023 Meeting Minutes:   

Motion for approval was made by D. Gray.  D. Johnson seconded the motion.  

The motion was unanimously approved.  

 

3. Financial Statements for August – R. Finley:  

 a. Schedule of Budget Annual vs. Actual YTD 

 b. Statements of Assets, Liabilities & Equity  

 c. Statement of Revenues and Expenditures YTD  

  d. Statement of Cash Flows YTD  

 e. Excel Budget Format Rev & Exp   

 

R. Finley provided an overview of the financial statements.  The revenues and 

expenditures over the last month have been routine or business as usual. 

October is typically a strong month.  The new fiscal year budget is working 

well.  

 

Acceptance of Financials:  

G. Khoury made a motion to accept the report.  L. Lingle seconded the 

motion.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

 

4. Executive Director’s Report – J. Meyer:   
 

 J. Meyer’s report was provided with the agenda materials.  The load factor has 

been excellent.  J. Meyer provided an overview of his involvement with the news 

report about incentive monies being returned due to American Airlines deciding 

not to offer regular service to Charlotte at this time.    

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 153 of 203



The Reef Parking report was reviewed.  The Saturday Free Parking offer was 

reviewed.  The data shows some slight improvement but is inconclusive as to the 

overall effectiveness.  J. Meyer will be making a recommendation as to offering the 

incentive in the future or modifying it.   

 

5. Air Operations Report – B. Rodgers:  B. Rodgers did not attend the meeting 

 or submit a report.    

 6. Committee Reports:  

 

  a. Airport Name Change – D. Gray: 

A mutual PSU/Authority publicity event is tentatively planned for 

November 3rd.   

 

    b. Airport Governance/Organization Task Force (AGOTF) – D. Gray: 

    

Discussions are progressing.  

 

c. Boarding Bridges – G. Khoury:  

   

G. Khoury stated that progress is being made.  Meetings with reps from 

Mead and Hunt and the FAA occurred this morning. There are questions 

about the number of boarding bridges needed now and in the future.  

The consensus is to apply for four bridges to accommodate future 

growth. Costs, options and indirect changes are being reviewed.  A final 

report is due in December.  Additional feasibilities studies would be 

necessary for any terminal alterations needed.   

 

d.      HR – H. Mose: 

 

 H. Mose stated that the Committee has been busy with looking at options 

 for a pension program. They have held interviews with providers and 

 administrators.  The Committee is recommending Atlantic Pension 

 Services to be the Third Party Administrator.  They also liked the firm of 

 Dunbar Bender and Zapf.   

 

 H. Mose stated, as part of the pension plan transition process, that the 

 Authority needed to end the current Simple IRA and give  participants 

a 60-day notice of its termination.   

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 154 of 203



H. Mose made a motion to approve Resolution Terminating Vanguard 

Simple IRA Plan with the closing taking place at the close of business 

December 31st, 2023.  The motion was seconded by D. Gray.  The 

motion was unanimously approved.   

 

H. Mose made a motion to allow the HR Committee to use their best 

judgement in selecting one of the previously mentioned Third Party 

Administrators and to keep making progress with the pension plan 

transition.  D. Gray seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously 

approved.   

 

H. Mose mentioned that the new health care program was adopted last 

month.  There are some needed revisions to the Employee Handbook 

related to reclassifications.  There may need to be a temporary solution 

for employees who will begin paying insurance premium co-pays.   

 

H. Mose mentioned that the wage and salary survey and an issue with 

lost sick leave is still pending.   

 

 

7. Continuing Business:   

a. Food & Beverage Cart in Departure Area: 

        This service has ended.  Sales were not sufficient to maintain the service.  

There was discussion regarding options including subsidizing the service. 

8. New Business:   

a. West Penn Power looking for land for a new Sub Station:    

 The consensus was that the Authority did not have land available or have 

any interest as most of its lands are Federally obligated.  

b. 3rd Quarter Report: 

 H. Mose commented that the Report shows great progress with a few 

areas to work on.   

   

Around the Room: There were comments regarding the loss of the coffee cart in 

the departure lounge. Well wishes for George Downsbrough.     

 

Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 155 of 203



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING  

7:30 AM   

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15TH, 2023 

AGENDA 

Members: 

Steve Caldana (Member, Water) Chair Jason Ostroskie (Member, Streets) V. Chair 

Samuel Horner (Member, Refuse) Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP- Mgmt) 

Bill Witmer (Member, Police)  Matt Auman (Member, PW-Mgmt)  

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) Julie Brooks (Member, Mgmt)  

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept)  Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)         

Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP)     

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

    

Guests: Ralph W Stewart 

  Don Holderman 

  Barb Smith 

  April Ressler 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –October 11th, 2023    1st                                   2nd 

 

OLD BUSINESS  

➢ Safety Concern Forms Review  

➢ Recent safety incidents or near misses review- Parks & Recreation Dept. 

➢ 4th Quarter Facility Inspection- Borough Office Building deadline December 31, 2023 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

➢ Video- Cold Stress- Working Safely in Cold Weather (8 min) 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

➢ Please try to limit all comments to three minutes maximum.  

 

NEXT MEETING  

➢ The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, December 13th, 2023 @ 7:30 AM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT    1st                                           2nd                 @                         AM 
 

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 156 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 157 of 203



 

 

BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 11TH, 2023, 7:30 A.M. 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH BUILDING COUNCIL ROOM 

 
Members Present:     

Jason Ostroskie (Member, streets) 

Matt Auman (Member, Mgmt) 

Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)  

Steve Caldana (Member, Water) Chair 

Sam Horner (Member, Refuse)  

Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP-Mgmt) 

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS)  

Julie Brooks (Member, Mgmt) 

Bill Witmer (Member, Police) 

Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) 

 

Members Absent:  

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept) 

 

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

 

Guests: Ralph Stewart 

   Barb Smith, Teeter Group 

             

CALL TO ORDER:  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – September 13th, 2023 

Mr. Brachbill moved to approve the meeting minutes. Mr. Ostroskie seconded.  Motion carried.  

OLD BUSINESS:   

Safety Concern Forms Review: None. 

 

Recent Safety incidents or near-miss reviews: None. 

 

3rd Quarter Facility Inspection- Pump Houses: The inspection was completed on September 

22, 2023 by Don Holderman, Matt Auman, Julie Brooks, Jason Ostroskie and Steve Caldana. 

There were minor findings that are being corrected immediately. Overall, all locations were kept 

in order and very clean.    

 

New Member to Workplace Safety Committee: Don Holderman has stepped down as a 

Committee Member and has been replaced by Julie Brooks.   

 

NEW BUSINESS:    

Annual Safety Committee Training: Training will take place at the conclusion of this meeting.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 158 of 203



 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  

Shannon Struble introduced Seth Klinefelter to the Safety Committee. Seth is the Employee 

Representative from the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 

NEXT MEETING:  Next meeting will be held on Wednesday, November 15th, 2023, @ 7:30 

a.m.  

 

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Caldana moved to adjourn. Mr. Ostroskie seconded the motion.  

Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 7:35 a.m.   

 

Annual Safety Committee Training: Training was presented by Barb Smith with The Teeter 

Group after the Safety Committee Meeting adjourned.  

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 159 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 160 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 161 of 203



Bellefonte Borough 
Accident Investigation Report Form 

Employee Name 
 

Job Title 
Lo..h:>c-er 

Date of Hire 

Date of Incident 
/Ol-}..,/'71 

Department 
j:h.rV-s 

Time in Current Job 

Names of Persons Who Witnessed the Accident 

Did Employee seek Medical Treatment? Yas

If so, where? f\\eJ E��

Accident/Incident Details 

Where did the accident/incident occur? Please be specific. 
h ('reek a h,w v.>0-.l«< S + 

Time oflncident 
9:so r-uH 

Date and Time Reported 
1o/a7h3 /O�co IJ.'41. 

Hours wor�ed in past 24
s-- r  

Return to Work Date 

10/101z,g 

In your own words, tlescribe what is repmied to have happened. 
ff;'M1ki.� &.ruth O !otA9 -\-k c.xeek, 0t :\\er<1rl-<1J -k p0.. � \ dcu>v-. SCN'lNZ IDrus h arJ. los-J-

�l..-to\ o� �e �ru<.;IA � V' \\o.lAd u.0J ,0-V\ �\.- \�� � �¾) +� ok.((, ko.v.J w"'-�c.l. 
WCI--� \\c\d�� Cl �,<: o.\' Fo�J\-�l'd +� sk�rs, 

Describe the resulting injury, illness or prope1iy damage. 
PvtncJwe wou V\l -b Le\-:t \-\_��

In your own words, describe exactly what the employee was doing just prior to and at the 
time of the accident. 

70-,�,.-n.: 'j Brust, 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 162 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 163 of 203



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

NITTANY VALLEY JOINT PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting minutes of September 21, 2023 

WALKER TOWNSHIP 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Archie Gettig called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. 

MEMBER ROLL CALL 

 JAN 
‘23 

MAR 
‘23 

MAY 
‘23 

JUL 
‘23 

SEP 
‘23 

NOV 
‘23 

JAN 
‘24 

MAR 
‘24 

MAY 
‘24 

JUL 
‘24 

SEP 
‘24 

NOV 
‘24 

Doug Johnson  x x N         
Dave Lomison x x x O x        
Lynn Chaplin  x x          
Randy Moyer    M         
Casey Dillon x   E         
Archie Gettig x  x E x        
Dave Capperella    T         
Jeff Kranch x x  I         
Keith Harter x x x N x        
Bill Workman    G x        
QUORUM 4 4 5  3        

3 municipalities must have a representative present to justify a quorum per the NVJPC bylaws. 

GUESTS: Vaughn Zimmerman (Spring Twp. Zoning Officer); Gina Thompson (Bellefonte Planning/Zoning 
Officer); Xochi Confer (CCPCDO); Liz Lose (CCPCDO). 

Public Comments/Questions/items not on agenda. 

None offered. 

Secretary’s Report 

Approval of meeting minutes of May 18, 2023. Motion to accept/approve by Mr. Gettig; 2nd by Mr. 
Harter. Motion passed.  

Communication and Bills 

None. 

Reports of Officers 

The September 2023 NVJPC Financial Statement balance is $1,893.86. Mr. Lomison motioned to 
accept/approve. Mr. Harter 2nd. Motion passed.  

Discussion Topics/Old Business: 

• Emergency Services DCED Study 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 164 of 203



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

o Correspondence received from Walker Township Fire Department’s Solicitor Mr. Beard 
with questions regarding the study. 

o Mr. Harter explained that the WTFD chief attended the August 2022 presentation from 
DCED’s study consultant Floyd Wise. 

o Ms. Lose affirmed that both Bellefonte Fire Department companies submitted the 
required study data, but Howard and Pleasant Gap Fire Departments had not.  

o Mr. Harter reminded those in attendance that both the Walker Township BOS and the 
Marion Township BOS sufficiently funded the WTFD.  

o Ms. Lose reiterated that the fire study was a goal in the regional comprehensive plan 
and that a study could prevent the need for regionalization of services. 

o Mr. Harter motioned to direct Ms. Lose to draft and share a reply to Mr. Beard with the 
officers for input and approval before the November meeting. Mr. Lomison 2nd. Motion 
passed. 

 

Discussion Topics New Business: 

• MPO September 2023 Handout 

Ms. Confer distributed the MPO handout and reminded those in attendance key dates for the 
submission of County Liquid Fuels and PennDOT Multimodal Transportation Fund applications. 

• Regional Fact Sheet Update 
Ms. Lose highlighted the key information in the Nittany Valley updated fact sheet and informed 
the group that all regional sheets will be in the Data and Map sections of the Planning Office’s 
website in the next 2-3 weeks. 

• Underutilized Site Inventory 
Ms. Lose provided a reminder that an update to the underutilized site inventory is on the 
horizon and the CCPCDO staff will be reaching out to municipalities for information regarding 
vacant buildings and lots. 

Planning and Zoning Updates: 

• Spring Township – Kepler Pool building permit processed; Geisinger contract awarded for 
construction; CPI land development plan received; Dollar General in progress; No movement on 
potential Jacksonville Road solar project; Logan Greene proposed revising plan to add more 
townhouse units; Bridle Ridge; Hawbaker adding more tanks at location; Zion Road property 
rumored to have been sold for residential development. 

• Bellefonte Borough – Consolidated Bellefonte Elementary School land development plan 
received; traffic study and potential intersection signals at Zion and Airport Road/Parkview 
Heights recommended; new tenant at the former Weis Market building next to Mount Nittany 
Hospital’s billing office yet unknown; short-term rental ordinance being challenged and 
reviewed; historic district guidelines being revised. 

• Marion Township – permits for 2 SFDUs and 2 garages. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 165 of 203



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

• Walker Township – permits for 28 SFDUs; variance of solar ordinance for property by driving 
range; change in use for an agricultural building now a business under review; Shady Farm 90 
duplex unit land development approved. 

Information/Announcements/Correspondence  

• MPO Handout 
• Correspondence from Solicitor Rod Beard 

Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Harter; 2nd by Mr. Workman. 7:10 p.m. 

Remaining 2023 NVJPC Meetings are: 

November 16th @ Bellefonte Borough 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 166 of 203



11/16/23, 8:34 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQANVhVw86NndPrq%2FP6tm… 1/1

Fw: question regarding budget vs actual report

Lori McGowan <lmcgowan@bellefontepa.gov>
Wed 11/15/2023 2:26 PM
To: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

Lori McGowan
Finance Director
Bellefonte Borough
phone: 814-355-1501 x212
fax: 814-353-2315

From: Lori McGowan
Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 11:39 AM
To: Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefontepa.gov>; Buddy Johnson <Bjohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Deborah Cleeton <dcleeton@bellefontepa.gov>; Doug Johnson
<djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Joanne Tos�-Vasey <jtos�-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Johanna Sedgwick <Jsedgwick@bellefontepa.gov>; Kent Bernier
<Kbernier@bellefontepa.gov>; Randy Brachbill <rbrachbill@bellefontepa.gov>; Rita Purnell <Rpurnell@bellefontepa.gov>; Shawna McKean
<Smckean@bellefontepa.gov>
Cc: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>; Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: ques�on regarding budget vs actual report
 
At the November 6, 2023 Council mee�ng, the ques�on was asked about account number 497.000.000 in the bulk water fund on the budget vs actual report. 
The amount in the line item is $217,950.00.  The expense is for the Musser Lane grant.  The grant will reimburse this amount, so there is no need for the
Authority to return any funds. 

The grant was budgeted in the refuse fund.  However, paying this out of the refuse fund would have used a large amount of its cash balance.  Therefore, the Bulk
Water Fund was used.  Since this will be reimbursed, this fund had the cash balance to pay out ini�ally.   

Also, any ques�ons you may have about the budget, if you would please forward them to Don or Ralph before the mee�ng, that would be helpful.  There are a
lot of accounts under the general fund, so if we have the ques�ons beforehand, we can make sure we have the answers for the mee�ng.  This would be helpful
for any ques�ons you may have at any �me during the year.  As there are so many funds and accounts, having the ques�on before the mee�ng allows us to have
the answer at the mee�ng, therefore speeding up the process and ge�ng the answer out to the public when the ques�on is asked.

If you have any further ques�ons, please feel free to contact me. 

Have a great day!

Lori

Lori McGowan
Finance Director
Bellefonte Borough
phone: 814-355-1501 x212
fax: 814-353-2315

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 167 of 203



11/17/23, 9:32 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAD%2FgOo%2F1Bj1NnL3%2… 1/2

FW: 2024 MMO Revision

Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>
Fri 11/17/2023 8:41 AM
To: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 

Hi Alyssa,
Please put this email in the packet with the MMO sheet and the Resolu�on.

Thank you,
Ralph

__
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager
Borough of Bellefonte
236 West Lamb Street
Bellefonte PA 16823
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214

From: Barbi Watson <bwatson@bellefontepa.gov>
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2023 8:38 AM
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>; Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: 2024 MMO Revision

Hello,

The MMO has been revised.

The 2024 MMO was originally $106,892 and now is $56,647.

Below is the original email from Gabby at Mockenhaupt explaining why the change.

Hello Barbi,

A Revised 2024 Minimum Municipal Obligation (MMO) Report for your Plan is now available in the “File Cabinet” folder of the Mockenhaupt
FTP site. This MMO may be substituted for the initial MMO up to the time the final budget is adopted. You may access the report by logging
in to: https://mbgbenefits.syncedtool.com.

This revised MMO uses funding components from the recently completed January 1, 2023 Actuarial Valuation Report.  The contribution
requirement under the revised MMO would be less than the amount determined by the initial 2024 MMO, which was based on the January
1, 2021 Actuarial Valuation Report.  Therefore, we recommend that you adopt this revised MMO since it reflects a contribution level that is
more consistent with the plan’s current funding condition and reduces the municipality’s general fund obligation.

Please forward a signed copy of the MMO you adopt (original or revised) to us at your convenience, either via e-mail or through the FTP site.
We will then save the signed MMO in the “File Cabinet” folder on the FTP site (replacing the unsigned version) so you may access it any time.

If you have any questions about the calculation or the MMO process in general, feel free to contact me at (412) 394-9387.

Sincerely,

Gabrielle Slaugenhaupt

Consultant

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 168 of 203

https://mbgbenefits.syncedtool.com/


11/17/23, 9:32 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAD%2FgOo%2F1Bj1NnL3%2… 2/2

Office: 412-394-9387 or 1-800-405-3620

Gabrielle.Slaugenhaupt@mbgbenefits.com

Barbi Watson
Pension/Payroll Coordinator
Utilities

Bellefonte Borough
236 W. Lamb St. 
Bellefonte, PA 16823
Office: (814) 355-1501 x: 211
Fax: (814) 353-2315

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 169 of 203

mailto:Gabrielle.Slaugenhaupt@mbgbenefits.com


RESOLUTION NO. 
---

BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE POLICE PENSION PLAN 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE RELATIVE TO THE 
ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF EMPLOYEES PENSION, ANNUITY, 
INSURANCE AND BENEFIT FUND OR FUNDS, TO AMEND CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 
THE PENSION PLAN OR PROGRAM APPLICABLE TO THE POLICE EMPLOYEES OF 
SAID BOROUGH: 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte (the "Borough") has previously established the 
Borough of Bellefonte Police Pension Plan (the "Plan"), which was adopted pursuant to Act 600; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Borough reserves the right to reduce or eliminate Participant 
Contributions below the mandated rate of five percent (5 .0%) of compensation subject to certain 
conditions on an annual basis; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough has received confirmation from the Plan's Actuary with respect 
to the Participant Contributions; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough is satisfied that the conditions have been met in order to reduce 
the contribution rate to three and nine-tenths percent (3.9%) of compensation for 2024; 

BE IT RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Borough Council and it is HEREBY 
RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by authority of the same: 

Effective January 1, 2024 and continuing through and including December 31, 2024, the 
amount of Participant Contributions due shall be three and nine-tenths percent (3.9%) of 
compensation. The obligation to pay Participant Contributions pursuant to Act 600 in the 
amount specified therein shall resume effective as of January 1, 2025. 

RESOLVED AND ADOPTED this _20th_ day of _November_ , 2023. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

President / Borough Council 

11202023-01

Secretary 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 170 of 203



11/20/2023

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 171 of 203



Borough of Bellefonte 
Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project 

Contract No. 2023-01 

 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING MINUTES 

November 2, 2023 
 
 
1. Attendees: 

Shep Hoehling – Pennoni CHoehling@Pennoni.com 
Donald Voigt – Pennoni DVoigt@Pennoni.com 
Don Holderman – Bellefonte Borough DHolderman@bellefontepa.gov 
Matt Auman – Bellefonte Borough Mauman@bellefontepa.gov 
Chad Homan – John Claar Excaving, Inc. CHomanjcci@outlook.com 
John Claar – John Claar Excavating, Inc. Claarw@aol.com  
Cody Ripka – John Claar Excavating, Inc. Codyripkajc@gmail.com  
 
 
 

2. The Borough of Bellefonte will be conducting Municipal Authority work prior to, and 

separate from, the start of the Parkview Heights project to relocate a sanitary lateral.  This 

work should be complete and not interfere with the Parkview Heights Stormwater 

Management Project. 

3. Intended Start Date: December 4, 2023 

4. Approved PAG-02 NPDES Permit: Dated June 7, 2023 

a. Discuss the requirements of the General Permit 

b. Approved E&S and PCSM Plan Date: December 7, 2022 

c. Reduction plan for construction email, the scope of work has not changed from the 

approved NPDES Permit.  The work to be completed has just been reduced. 

d. Provided John Claar Excavating, Inc. with a copy of the approved permit, and email 

correspondence with the Centre County Conservation District. 

5. Permit and Plans must be kept on site at all times. 

6. Review Limits of Disturbance 

a. Trees that must be removed for construction identified. 

7. Review Construction Sequence 

a. Contractor confirmed constructability of E&S BMPs (per plan) 

b. E&S Control installation prior to Land Disturbance (per plan) 

c. Discussed the construction sequence between Parkwood Drive and the upstream 

wetland. Due to site constraints, this portion would have to be performed from the 

edge of the wetland, downstream to Parkwood Drive.  Appropriate Erosion and 

Sediment Control was discussed and John Claar to have a pump available on site if 

required.  Parkwood Drive to remain clean of sediment during construction.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 172 of 203



Borough of Bellefonte 
Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project 

Contract No. 2023-01 

8. Review E&S BMP Maintenance and Inspection requirements 

9. Review Permit expiration and NPDES NOT requirements. 

10. Work Restrictions 

a. Work will be limited to the hours between 7:00 am and 7:00 p.m., Monday through 

Saturday.  No work whatsoever or operation of machinery may be performed before 

or after these hours or on a Sunday, unless written permission is provided by the 

Municipality. 

11. Change Orders 

a. Change order requests will be reviewed in accordance with Section 16, General 

Conditions (Pages E-6 – E-8). 

b. Contractor shall be fully responsible for the condition of his excavation.  No 

additional compensation shall be authorized for the remedy of over excavated 

trenches. 

c. Maximum permissible trench width shall be 2 feet wider than the outside diameter of 

the pipe.  No additional compensation shall be granted for paving restoration outside 

the maximum permissible trench width. 

12. Additional Comments: 

 

 Borough of Bellefonte to locate existing railroad Easement information.  Pennoni to 

reach out to Sub Contractor / Surveyor to determine if any easements had been 

identified as part of the survey. 

 Pennoni to send CAD design files to John Claar.  John Claar to verify field 

elevations and markings as well as create a pre-construction video prior to work 

start. 

 John Claar Excavating, Inc. to complete the Co-Permittee Acknowledgement Form 

for Chapter 102 Permits to add as co-permittee. 

 John Claar Excavating, Inc. discussed with the Borough of Bellefonte, an 

agreement to transport topsoil off site to Borough property and then to the Borough 

stockpile and dump site. 

 

 

 

U:\Accounts\BLFNT\BLFNT22001 - Parkview Heights Stormwater Management\DOC PREP\Pre Construction Meeting 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 173 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 174 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 175 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 176 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 177 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 178 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 179 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 180 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 181 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 182 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 183 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 184 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 185 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 186 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 187 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 188 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 189 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 190 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 191 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 192 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 193 of 203



11/17/23, 9:47 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAJ8DTr7gAUBCvXePvAklfbY… 1/3

Fw: Duck sampling at Talleyrand Park

Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Fri 11/17/2023 8:10 AM
To: Alyssa Doherty <adoherty@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Doug Johnson <djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 

1 attachments (391 KB)
WS FORM 12A borough of Bellefonte FY24 printable.pdf;

Alyssa:

This request just came in. Would you add it to the packet under new business. We will need a mo�on to approve.  Thank you

Donald L. Holderman
Assistant Borough Manager
Bellefonte Borough
814-355-1501 extension 215

From: Van Why, Kyle - MRP-APHIS <kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 16, 2023 7:25 PM
To: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Subject: RE: Duck sampling at Talleyrand Park
 
I wanted to touch base with you about a�emp�ng to capture birds again for avian influenza sampling.   Your site has been very valuable related to this
surveillance program over the years and with high pathogenic avian influenza con�nuing to occur in wild and domes�c birds again this year it is important we
understand what is going on in our region.   As with past years I will be sure to contact you prior to sampling.  Our season goes from December through
March.
 
Thanks again for your coopera�on and let me know if you have any ques�ons
 
Kyle
 
 
Kyle Van Why
Wildlife Disease Biologist
USDA Wildlife Services
PO Box 60827
Harrisburg, PA 17106
Kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
717-236-9451 office
717-319-6674 cell
 
From: Van Why, Kyle - MRP-APHIS
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2023 2:31 PM
To: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>; Roland, Anthony - MRP-APHIS <tony.c.roland@usda.gov>
Subject: RE: Duck sampling at Talleyrand Park
 
Donald
 
The goal would be to capture and test about 30 wild mallards at the park.  The weather has made it tough this year because of warmer days and rain, but the
capture season goes into March, although I would like to capture during February if I can.  We would contact you a few days before capture to let you know
because a lot of it is playing the weather this year to get the birds to cooperate.  Capture �me is usually around 9am and we would no�fy people at the park
at the �me of capture what we are doing.  All the wild birds are sampled and released at the park.  We would not take any addi�onal ac�on if influenza is
found in the popula�on (besides monitoring for mortali�es), this is part of our annual surveillance to determine what strains are occurring and how common
the strain that is affec�ng domes�c poultry is in the environment.  Ducks are a natural carrier of avian influenza and even the new strain causing issues with
poultry has been found in wild waterfowl and o�en not caused any symptoms.
 
I have included a new 12a for capture at the site, so if approval is given please sign and send back.  I have also included a news ar�cle from another site I
captured at that explains a lot of what I am doing with sampling.  If more info is needed, please let me know.
h�ps://www.thelancasterpatriot.com/usda-tests-local-ducks-for-avian-flu/
We would use the net launcher like in previous years, which makes a bang when we fire it office but is the most effec�ve way to capture birds at sites like
yours (and we have been successful there in past years with this method).
 
We did no�ce that there were a lot of domes�c birds at the site which we are likely to capture (about 15-20% of what I saw were a domes�c or domes�c
hybrid).  I know in the past we have worked with you on management of those birds.  That is completely up to you if you want assistance with that.   Recently
I have been working with a group that will rehome the domes�c birds, they foster them to interested par�es that they screen to make sure they are not just
going to release them or kill them.  This is a very legi�mate group that has done a lot of work on sites similar to this and we made contact with them related

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 194 of 203

mailto:Kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
https://www.thelancasterpatriot.com/usda-tests-local-ducks-for-avian-flu/


11/17/23, 9:47 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAJ8DTr7gAUBCvXePvAklfbY… 2/3

to another project that we just did.  We could work with them related to your site and remove the domes�cs to be rehomed.  Reducing the domes�c birds
can help reduce bird numbers because the domes�cs usually don’t leave and are o�en the first to come to feed (or to people, promp�ng people to feel they
need to feed them).
 
I can also provide info on the rehoming group, which has stated that they are willing to work with communi�es dealing with issues with domes�c ducks,
including signage, and even ordinances concerning dumping if that is something you would like to pursue, we can put you in touch with them.
 
At this point though, we are primarily focused on sampling for avian influenza (as has been in the past, especially because it is such a concern this year due to
impacts on domes�c birds) and dealing with the domes�c ducks just something that a lot of communi�es have asked us to assist with since we will likely have
them in hand.  If working with his group is something that the board needs to consider further I understand.  We can release all the birds on site.  As well
since the sampling window is not that large I would like to get approval for that as a priority if extra �me needs to be taken on the other issue.   Just let us
know how you would like us to proceed if we are able to capture at the site.
 
Thanks and if you have any ques�on let me know.
 
Kyle
 
 
 
Kyle Van Why
Wildlife Disease Biologist
USDA Wildlife Services
PO Box 60827
Harrisburg, PA 17106
Kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
717-236-9451 office
717-319-6674 cell
 
From: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2023 1:39 PM
To: Roland, Anthony - MRP-APHIS <tony.c.roland@usda.gov>
Cc: Van Why, Kyle - MRP-APHIS <kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov>
Subject: Re: Duck sampling at Talleyrand Park
 
Tony:
 
If you would, please give me a date and approximate number of ducks so I can place the request in Council packet for approval.  I think our
Council will be fine with the request, but we have 5 new Council members that haven't seen this request before.
 
Thanks,
 
Donald L. Holderman, CBO
Assistant Borough Manager
Bellefonte Borough
814-355-1501 extension 215

From: Roland, Anthony - MRP-APHIS <tony.c.roland@usda.gov>
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2023 10:41 AM
To: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov>
Cc: Van Why, Kyle - MRP-APHIS <kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov>
Subject: Duck sampling at Talleyrand Park
 
Hi Don,
 
Our disease biologist, Kyle Van Why, is looking for sites to collect samples again for avian influenza.  Would he be permi�ed to capture ducks at Talleyrand
Park for disease sampling purposes?   
 
Tony Roland
District Supervisor
Certified Wildlife Biologist®
USDA Wildlife Services
335 Harter Road
Spring Mills, PA 16875
(724) 263-9232
tony.c.roland@usda.gov
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: The preceding email message contains informa�on that may be confiden�al, proprietary, or legally privileged, and may cons�tute
non-public informa�on. This message is intended to be conveyed only to the intended named recipient(s). If you are not an intended recipient of this
message, do not read it; instead, please advise the sender by reply email, and delete this message and any a�achments. Unauthorized individuals or en��es

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 195 of 203

mailto:Kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
mailto:dholderman@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:tony.c.roland@usda.gov
mailto:kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
mailto:tony.c.roland@usda.gov
mailto:dholderman@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:kyle.r.vanwhy@usda.gov
mailto:tony.c.roland@usda.gov


11/17/23, 9:47 AM Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook

https://outlook.office.com/mail/inbox/id/AAQkAGY4NzRlN2MxLWNjNTMtNDE4MC04OWNjLTQwMGRiYzJhYWNhMgAQAJ8DTr7gAUBCvXePvAklfbY… 3/3

are not permi�ed access to this informa�on. Any disclosure, copying, distribu�on, or taking any ac�on in reliance on the contents of this informa�on, except
its delivery to the sender, is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful.
 

This electronic message contains informa�on generated by the USDA solely for the intended recipients. Any unauthorized intercep�on of this message or the
use or disclosure of the informa�on it contains may violate the law and subject the violator to civil or criminal penal�es. If you believe you have received this
message in error, please no�fy the sender and delete the email immediately.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 196 of 203



According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it 
displays a valid OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0579-0335. The time required to complete this information collection is 
estimated to average .083 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and
completing and reviewing the collection of information.

OMB Approved
0579-0335

EXP. XX/XXXX

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
ANIMAL AND PLANT HEALTH INSPECTION SERVICE

WILDLIFE SERVICES

WORK INITIATION DOCUMENT FOR 
WILDLIFE DAMAGE MANAGEMENT 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1

1. WORK INITIATION DOCUMENT NUMBER 2. STATUS

NEW RENEWAL

3A. TYPE OF WORK INITIATION DOCUMENT (mark all that apply) 3B. ASSIGN TO THESE SPECIAL GROUPS

PRIVATE PROPERTY NON-PRIVATE PROPERTY TEMPORARY/CIVIL
(1)

(2)

ADJACENT LANDOWNER AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING WORK INITIATION DOCUMENT
(3)

(4)

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2

4. COOPERATOR NAME (last, first, MI)

5. COOPERATOR MAILING ADDRESS

6. COMMON NAME 7. COOPERATOR TELEPHONE NUMBER

8. OWNER OR REPRESENTATIVE NAME (if different from Cooperator) 9. OWNER OR REPRESENTATIVE TELEPHONE NUMBER

10. OWNER OR REPRESENTATIVE ADDRESS (if different from Cooperator)

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 3

11. PROPERTY / LAND CLASS INFORMATION 12. ADJOINING 13. TARGETED SPECIES

COUNTY PROPERTY LAND CLASS ACRES PROPERTY WID NO.’s

A. A. A. F.

B. B. B. G.

C. C. C. H.

D. D. D. I.

E. E. E. J. 

STATE TOTAL ACRES 14. There are additional targeted species
(complete and attach WS Form 12 Addendum)

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 4

15. In consideration of the benefits to be derived from the proper management of damage caused by those species listed in Item 13 (and Item 14 if applicable), I, the
undersigned Cooperator or Cooperator’s representative, do hereby give my consent and concurrence to the Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) (to 
include its officials, employees, and agents) to use, upon lands owned, leased, or otherwise controlled by me, and identified by this Work Initiation Document, the 
following methods and devices (COMPONENTS):

A. B. C.

D. E. F.

16. There are additional components (complete and attach WS Form 12 Addendum)

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 5

17. I, the Cooperator or Cooperator’s representative, have been informed of the methods and the manner in which the control materials and devices listed in Section 4
will be used, and of the possible hazards associated with their use. I understand that APHIS (to include its officers, employees, and agents) will exercise reasonable 
precautions to safeguard all persons to prevent injury to animal life other than those listed in Section 3, Item 13 (and Item 14, if applicable); guard against the 
mishandling of control devices and materials; and exercise due caution and proper judgment in all wildlife damage management operations. I understand that APHIS, 
WS, will maintain restricted use pesticide application records on applications made under the Work Initiation Document, and that APHIS WS will provide copies of the 
records or record information promptly upon the property owner’s or cooperator’s request. I understand that APHIS may collect Global Positioning System (GPS) 
coordinates at the project site as part of component or activity tracking or as wildlife disease monitoring or research data.

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 6

18. In consideration of these understandings and of the benefits to be derived, I, the Cooperator or Cooperator’s representative, agree to take reasonable precautions to
prevent injury to livestock and other domestic animals; assume responsibility for injury to my property under my control when said injury is not the result of negligence on 
the part of APHIS; assist in maintaining such warning signs as APHIS may place for the purpose of notifying persons entering onto such lands of the possible hazards
associated with wildlife damage management measures in use thereon; and to give adequate warning of these possible hazards to persons I authorize to enter onto 
such lands. Further, in recognition of the benefits to be derived from the use of specified methods and devices authorized by this Work Initiation Document, I, the 
cooperator or cooperator’s representative, agree not to concurrently use or allow to be used upon lands covered by this Work Initiation Document any toxic material that
might reasonably be expected to take a species listed above in Section 3, Item 13 (and Item 14, if applicable), unless such use of said toxicant is agreed to by APHIS in 
writing.

19. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

20A. LANDOWNER, LESSEE, OR ADMINISTRATOR NAME AND TITLE 20B. SIGNATURE 20C. DATE

21A. APHIS REPRESENTATIVE NAME 21B. SIGNATURE 21C. DATE

21D. APHIS REPRESENTATIVE TELEPHONE NUMBER 21E. STATE OFFICE ADDRESS

WS FORM 12A PREVIOUS EDITION MAY BE USED.
AUG 2017

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 197 of 203



PRIVACY ACT NOTICE

5 52a(e)(3) requires that each agency that maintains a system of records provide each individual from whom the agency solicits information
with the following information. 

AUTHORITY FOR REQUESTING INFORMATION

7 U 351 to 8353, and 16 U 667, authorizes officers, agents, and employees of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal
and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS), Wildlife Services (WS) to conduct a program of wildlife services and to enter into agreements with States,
local jurisdictions, individuals, and public and private agencies, organizations, and institutions for the purpose of conducting such services.

NATURE OF YOUR DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

Disclosure of information solicited by USDA, APHIS, Wildlife Services is voluntary.

PRINCIPLE PURPOSE FOR WHICH THE INFORMATION IS SOLICITED

Information is solicited from you for the purpose of executing and implementing agreements for control of wildlife damage.

ROUTINE USES WHICH MAY BE MADE OF THE INFORMATION

(1) To cooperative Federal, State, Tribal, and local government officials, employees, or contractors and other parties as necessary to carry out the 
program; and other parties engaged to assist in administering the program. Such contractors and other parties will be bound by the nondisclosure 
provisions of the Privacy Act. This routine use assists the agency in carrying out the program, and thus is compatible with the purpose for which the 
records are created and maintained;

(2) To the appropriate agency, whether Federal, State, local, Tribal, or foreign, charged with responsibility of investigating or prosecuting a violation of 
law or of enforcing, implementing, or complying with a statute, rule, regulation, or order issued pursuant thereto, of any record within this system when 
information available indicates a violation or potential violation of law, whether civil, criminal, or regulatory in nature, and either arising by general statute 
or particular program statute, or by rule, regulation, or court order issued pursuant thereto;

(3) To the Department of Justice when the agency, or any component thereof, or any employee of the agency in his or her official capacity, or any 
employee of the agency in his or her individual capacity where the Department of Justice has agreed to represent the employee, or the United States, in 
litigation, where the agency determines that litigation is likely to affect the agency or any of its components, is a party to litigation or has an interest in 
such litigation, and the use of such records by the Department of Justice is deemed by the agency to be relevant and necessary to the litigation; 
provided, however, that in each case, the agency determines that disclosure of the records to the Department of Justice is a use of the information 
contained in the records that is compatible with the purpose for which the records were collected;

(4) For use in a proceeding before a court or adjudicative body before which the agency is authorized to appear, when the agency, or any component 
thereof, or any employee of the agency in his or her official capacity, or any employee of the agency in his or her individual capacity where the agency 
has agreed to represent the employee, or the United States, where the agency determines that litigation is likely to affect the agency or any of its 
components, is a party to litigation or has an interest in such litigation, and the agency determines that use of such records is relevant and necessary to 
the litigation; provided, however, that in each case, the agency determines that disclosure of the records to the court is a use of the information
contained in the records that is compatible with the purpose for which the records were collected;

(5) To appropriate agencies, entities, and persons when the agency suspects or has confirmed that the security or confidentiality of information in the 
system of records has been compromised; the agency has determined that as a result of the suspected or confirmed compromise, there is a risk of harm 
to economic or property interests, a risk of identity theft or fraud, or a risk of harm to the security of integrity of this system or other systems or programs 
(whether maintained by the agency or another agency or entity) that rely upon the compromised information; and the disclosure made to such agencies, 
entities, and persons is reasonably necessary to assist in connection with the agency’s efforts to respond to the suspected or confirmed compromise and 
prevent, minimize, or remedy such harm;

(6) To USDA contractors, partner agency employee or contractors, or private industry employed to identify patterns, trends, or anomalies indicative of 
fraud, waste, or abuse;

(7) To land management agencies, such as the Bureau of Land Management and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, relating to wildlife damage on
grazing allotments;

(8) To consumer reporting agencies in accordance with 31 U 3711(e);

(9) To Federal, State, Tribal, and local regulatory agencies and their employees and contractors who collaborate with Wildlife Services in
implementation of, or agencies that regulate, wildlife management projects or programs, or who have an interest in, or regulate, animal or public health, 
or national security;

(10) To Federal or State Government-level representatives of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, in compliance with the Federal Insecticide,
Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) mandate (7 U 36), of the location on a cooperator’s property where certain regulated pesticide devices 
are deployed or regulated pesticides are applied; and 

(11) To the National Archives and Records Administration (NARA) or to the General Services Administration for records management inspections
conducted under 44 U 2904 and 2906. 

EFFECTS OF FAILURE TO FURNISH INFORMATION

Failure to provide the solicited information will not subject you to penalties or adverse consequences.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 198 of 203



Instructions for Completing WS Form 12A,
Work Initiation Document For Wildlife Damage Management

NOTE: A WS Form 12A Work Initiation Document (WID) is required to be signed by a Cooperator for all properties worked by Wildlife 
Services (WS). The WID and the WID agreement in WS Management Information System (MIS) expire 5 years after the Cooperator 
signature date. To renew a WID agreement for another 5 years, a new WS Form 12A is required to be signed by the Cooperator, and
everything on the WID agreement in MIS must match the corresponding items on the WS Form 12A. 

NOTE: An expanded and detailed set of instructions for the WID is available in MIS. Employees should study the detailed version 
until familiar with completing the WID. 

SECTION 1 – Basic WID Identification and Type

1. Entering the WID document number is optional. Contact your MIS Data Technician to obtain this number if one is needed.

2. Mark only one box, selecting New (agreement) or Renewal (of existing agreement). 

3. A WID may have more than one type of work characteristic. Mark all applicable boxes indicating this WID’s type of work.

SECTION 2 – Cooperator Information

4. Enter the name of the Cooperator as it appears on the Cooperative Service Agreement, Cooperative Service Field Agreement, 
Memorandum of Agreement or Understanding, or as it appears in the Cooperator’s business references. 

5. Enter the Cooperator’s mailing address with street or P.O. box, city, state, and ZIP code. This may be the permanent address, mailing 
address, home address, or business/office address. 

6. Enter the common name of the Cooperator’s business, farm, or ranch, if applicable. 

7. Enter the Cooperator’s telephone number including the area code. It may be a landline or mobile telephone number.

8. Enter the name of the owner or Cooperator’s representative if it is different from the Cooperator’s name. 

9. Enter the property owner’s or property owner representative’s telephone number including area code. 

10. Enter the property owner’s address (or property owner representative’s work address if this is a business or a non-private agreement), 
including the ZIP code. If the Cooperator’s address in Item 5 is also the owner’s address, skip this step. 

SECTION 3 – Property Information, Location of Work, and Species Being Addressed

11. In this subsection, record the state and counties for the site(s) where the work is being performed for the cooperator. Include for each 
property the land class being worked on and the number of acres for the land class. Usually, only one land class can be recorded per property.
If there is more than one land class on a property, identify each of them separately (e.g. Property: Smith #1, Land Class Private; Smith #2, 
Land Class County/City). Record the total acres by summing all entries in the “Acres” column. 

12. If the WID allows work on an adjoining property as part of the project, additional WIDs signed by the adjoining landowners/ managers must 
be obtained. The WID document numbers for the adjoining properties go in this subsection. If WID numbers are not assigned, list the name of 
the other land owners/managers instead of numbers.

13. List the full common names of the targeted species as found in MIS. Review MIS Reference Files for accuracy.

14. If more than 10 species are targeted, mark this box and list the additional species on WS Form 12 Addendum. The WS Form 12A also 
requires an original signature. Ensure the WS Form 12 Addendum is attached to this WS Form 12A. 

SECTION 4 – Component Use Information

15. List the components that will be used in the project. They must be annotated exactly as they appear in the MIS component list. Do not list 
any activities (e.g., shooting, trapping, etc.).

16. If more than six components are entered, mark this box and list the additional components on WS Form 12 Addendum. The WS Form 12 
Addendum also requires an original signature. Ensure the addendum is attached to this WS Form 12A.

Section 5 – Work Initiation Considerations, WS Responsibilities

17. The Cooperator is required to read this section, or alternatively have it read to him/her, before signatures are affixed to the WID. 

Section 6 – Work Initiation Considerations, Cooperator Responsibilities

18. The Cooperator is required to read this section, or alternatively have it read to him/her, before signatures are affixed to the WID.

19. Special Considerations - If any special considerations are agreed to for this project, enter them in Item 19. They may also be entered in 
the MIS in the Agreement Remarks or the Property Comments fields. 

20, 21. Signatures/Dates – To complete the form, both the Cooperator’s authorized signer and the APHIS Representative (WS employee) 
print their names, sign in ink, and date the WS Form 12A. The WS employee also enters a contact telephone number and the State Office’s 
address. 

The WS employee is responsible for ensuring the Cooperator or authorized representative receives a copy of the WS Privacy Act Notice.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 199 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 200 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 201 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 202 of 203



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet November 20, 2023

Page 203 of 203


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 11202023
	WORK SESSION--Budget information from Lori
	WORK SESSION--2024 Budget
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 11202023
	COMMUNICATIONS--CCRRA Municipal Report - October  and November 2023
	COMMUNICATIONS--CCRRA Municipal Report - October  and November 2023
	November Municipal Newsletter (1)

	COMMUNICATIONS--Change of Point of Contact for SEDA-COG
	COMMUNICATIONS--Christian Larson- Jr. Borough Council Member Application_2024start
	COMMUNICATIONS--Junior Council Person Brochure from Boroughs Association
	COMMUNICATIONS--Expo Invitation
	COMMUNICATIONS--Response to Earth Disturbance Complaint 1308 Summit Drive
	COMMUNICATIONS--Solar United Neighbors
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.11062023.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.11062023.DRAFT
	November 6, 2023

	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual October 2023
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary October 2023
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report October 2023
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary October 2023
	REPORTS. Mayor--Small Business Saturday November 25, 2023
	REPORTS. POLICE--Chief Report October 2023
	REPORTS. POLICE--Parking Enforcement and Animal Control Report October 2023
	REPORTS. PARKING--October 2023 Report
	REPORTS. OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 11.20.2023
	REPORTS. OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 11.20.2023
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 11.20.2023
	REPORTS. OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 11.20.2023
	OCA--November 13, 2023 Agenda
	OCA--Planning Commission Mtg Minutes--11.13.2023.DRAFT



	REPORTS. Borough Manager Report October 2023
	LIAISION REPORTS. Bellefonte EMS 3rd Quarter Report 2023
	LIAISION REPORTS. Police Pension Board Minutes DRAFT 11152023
	LIAISON REPORT. Airport Authority Minutes DRAFT.10262023
	LIAISON REPORT. Workplace Safety Committee Packet November 15, 2023
	Agenda.11152023 on letterhead
	Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.10112023
	October 11, 2023
	Accident investigation Parks and Recreation Dept
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	LIAISON REPORT. NVJPC Minutes 09.21.2023
	OLD BUSINESS--Question regarding Budget v. Actual September 2023 Report
	OLD BUSINESS--Police Pension Fund Minimum Municipal Obligation for 2024
	OLD BUSINESS--Police Pension Fund Minimum Municipal Obligation for 2024
	OLD BUSINESS--MMO Resolution No. 11202023-01
	OLD BUSINESS--MMO for Municipal Budget 2024

	OLD BUSINESS--Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project Pre Construction Meeting Notes
	NEW BUSINESS--Bellefonte Borough and Centre Region COG Agreement
	BLFT Amend 1 Signed
	CRCS Agreement (3)

	NEW BUSINESS--Duck Sampling request
	Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook
	NEW BUSINESS--Duck Sampling request

	NEW BUSINESS--Joanne Tosti-Vasey’s request for reimbursement for attending the Pennsylvania Municipal League Conference



